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MINUTES FOR AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE MEETING 
HELD THURSDAY 24 JUNE 2021 AT 4:00PM 

1. DECLARATION OF OPENING 

The Presiding Member, Cr Patrick Hill, declared the Committee Meeting open at 

4:00pm. 

2. RECORD OF ATTENDANCE 

2.1 PRESENT 

Cr P Hill Member 
Cr S Weldon Member 
Cr R Weldon Member 
Cr J Carmody Member  
Cr G Buckmaster Member 
Cr R Ryles Member 
Cr R Prentice Member 

 

 Mr P Naylor     Chief Executive Officer 
 Mr P Marshall     Deputy Chief Executive Officer 

 

2.2 APOLOGIES  

 Cr S Weldon Member 
 Cr J Carmody Member 

2.3 LEAVE OF ABSENCE 

 Nil 

2.4 VISITORS 

Pranjal Sudhir Bhate, RSM Australia Pty Ltd & Efthalia Samaras, Office of 
the Auditor General, via Teams (from 4:00pm) 
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3. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

3.1 MINUTES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 27 MAY 2021 

 
ATTACHMENT 

ARC240621.3.1.A Minutes of Audit and Risk Committee Meeting 27 May 2021 

RESOLUTION                                   COUNCIL DECISION/PROCEDURAL MOTION 

 MOVED: Cr R Prentice SECONDED: Cr R Weldon 

 

That the Minutes of the Audit and Risk Committee Meeting (Attachment 

ARC240621.3.1.A) held on 27 May 2021, be confirmed as a true and accurate 

record of proceedings. 

CARRIED 5/0 
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4. REPORTS OF COMMITTEE AND OFFICERS 

 

4.1  AUDIT REPORTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 OF JUNE 2020 

 

REPORT TO WHICH 
MEETING/COMMITTEE  

Audit and Risk Committee Meeting, 24 June 
2021 

DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST The author has no financial interest in the 
matter presented to the Council 

OWNER/APPLICANT  Not applicable 

AUTHOR Phil Marshall, Deputy Chief Executive 
Officer 

RESPONSIBLE OFFICER Peter Naylor, Chief Executive Officer  

PREVIOUS MEETING 
REFERENCE IF APPLICABLE  

The 2019 Audit report was reported to the 
Committee on the 23 April 2020. 

 
MATTER FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE COUNCIL 

That the Audit and Risk Committee to receive and consider the following documents 
and recommend to the Council for adoption: 

➢ Management Letter from the Office of Auditor General (OAG) 
➢ Independent Audit report for the year ending 30 June 2020 
➢ Findings identified during the Final audit with a significant finding 

ATTACHMENTS 

ARC240621.4.1.A  Independent Auditors report for the year ending 30 June 
2020. 

ARC240621.4.1.B Management Letter for the year ending 30 June 2020. 
ARC240621.4.1.C Findings Identified During the Final Audit - Significant 
 
BACKGROUND 
In accordance with section 7.9 of the Local Government Act 1995, the audit was 
conducted by the OAG and RSM. 

 
STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS 
Local Government Act 1995 

 

1.3. Content and intent  

 (2) This Act is intended to result in —  

 (a) better decision-making by local governments; and 

 (b) greater community participation in the decisions and affairs of local 
governments; and 

 (c) greater accountability of local governments to their communities; and 

 (d) more efficient and effective local government. 
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 (3) In carrying out its functions a local government is to use its best endeavours 
to meet the needs of current and future generations through an integration of 
environmental protection, social advancement, and economic prosperity. 

 

2.7. Role of council  

 (1) The council —  

 (a) governs the local government’s affairs; and 

 (b) is responsible for the performance of the local government’s functions. 

 (2) Without limiting subsection (1), the council is to —  

 (a) oversee the allocation of the local government’s finances and 
resources; and 

 (b) determine the local government’s policies. 

3.1. General function 

 (1) The general function of a local government is to provide for the good 
government of persons in its district. 

 (2) The scope of the general function of a local government is to be construed in 
the context of its other functions under this Act or any other written law and 
any constraints imposed by this Act or any other written law on the 
performance of its functions. 

 (3) A liberal approach is to be taken to the construction of the scope of the general 
function of a local government. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1995 - SECT 7.9 

7.9.         Audit to be conducted 

        (1)         An auditor is required to examine the accounts and annual financial 
report submitted for audit and, by the 31 December next following the financial year 
to which the accounts and report relate or such later date as may be prescribed, to 
prepare a report thereon and forward a copy of that report to —   

            (a)         the mayor or president; and  

            (b)         the CEO of the local government; and  

            (c)         the Minister.  

        (2)         Without limiting the generality of subsection (1), where the auditor 
considers that —   

            (a)         there is any error or deficiency in an account or financial report 
submitted for audit; or  
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            (b)         any money paid from, or due to, any fund or account of a local 
government has been or may have been misapplied to purposes not authorised by 
law; or  

            (c)         there is a matter arising from the examination of the accounts and 
annual financial report that needs to be addressed by the local government,  

                details of that error, deficiency, misapplication or matter, are to be included 
in the report by the auditor.  

        (3)         The Minister may direct the auditor of a local government to examine a 
particular aspect of the accounts and the annual financial report submitted for audit 
by that local government and to —   

            (a)         prepare a report thereon; and  

            (b)         forward a copy of that report to the Minister,  

                and that direction has effect according to its terms.  

        (4)         If the Minister considers it appropriate to do so, the Minister is to 
forward a copy of the report referred to in subsection (3), or part of that report, to the 
CEO of the local government.  

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1995 - SECT 7.12A 

7.12A.         Duties of local government with respect to audits 

        (1)         A local government is to do everything in its power to —  

            (a)         assist the auditor of the local government to conduct an audit and 
carry out the auditor’s other duties under this Act in respect of the local government; 
and  

            (b)         ensure that audits are conducted successfully and expeditiously.  

        (2)         Without limiting the generality of subsection (1), a local government is 
to meet with the auditor of the local government at least once in every year.  

        (3)         A local government must —  

            (aa)         examine an audit report received by the local government; and  

            (a)         determine if any matters raised by the audit report, require action to 
be taken by the local government; and  

            (b)         ensure that appropriate action is taken in respect of those matters.  

        (4)         A local government must —  
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            (a)         prepare a report addressing any matters identified as significant by 
the auditor in the audit report, and stating what action the local government has 
taken or intends to take with respect to each of those matters; and  

            (b)         give a copy of that report to the Minister within 3 months after the 
audit report is received by the local government.  

        (5)         Within 14 days after a local government gives a report to the Minister 
under subsection (4)(b), the CEO must publish a copy of the report on the local 
government’s official website.  

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (AUDIT) REGULATIONS 1996 - REG 16 

16.         Functions of audit committee 

                An audit committee has the following functions —  

            (a)         to guide and assist the local government in carrying out —  

                  (i)         its functions under Part 6 of the Act; and  

                  (ii)         its functions relating to other audits and other matters related to 
financial management;  

            (b)         to guide and assist the local government in carrying out the local 
government’s functions in relation to audits conducted under Part 7 of the Act;  

 (c)         to review a report given to it by the CEO under regulation 17(3) (the CEO’s 
report ) and is to —  

                  (i)         report to the council the results of that review; and  

                  (ii)         give a copy of the CEO’s report to the council;  

            (d)         to monitor and advise the CEO when the CEO is carrying out 
functions in relation to a review under —  

            (e)         to support the auditor of the local government to conduct an audit 
and carry out the auditor’s other duties under the Act in respect of the local 
government;  

            (f)         to oversee the implementation of any action that the local 
government —  

                  (i)         is required to take by section 7.12A(3); and  

                  (ii)         has stated it has taken or intends to take in a report prepared 
under section 7.12A(4)(a); and  

http://www.austlii.edu.au/au/legis/wa/consol_reg/lgr1996341/s17.html
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                  (iii)         has accepted should be taken following receipt of a report of a 
review conducted under regulation 17(1); and  

                  (iv)         has accepted should be taken following receipt of a report of a 
review conducted under the Local Government (Financial Management) 
Regulations 1996 regulation 5(2)(c);  

            (g)         to perform any other function conferred on the audit committee by 
these regulations or another written law.  

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPLICATIONS 

Civic Leadership Objective - A financially strong and knowledgeable Shire, leading an 
empowered community. 

➢ Outcome 4.3 Improved planning  
➢ 4.3.1 Continue to review and improve organisational plans.  
➢ 4.3.2 Seek high level of statutory compliance. 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

There are no policy implications to the Council.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

The recommendation of this report has no financial implications for Council. 

RISK MANAGEMENT  

As the Council is meeting the requirements of the Local Government Act in both the 
acceptance of the Auditors Report and the management letter and with a non qualified 
audit,  the level of Risk is considered Minor. 

 

 
 
 
 

http://www.austlii.edu.au/au/legis/wa/consol_reg/lgr1996341/s17.html
http://www.austlii.edu.au/au/legis/wa/consol_reg/lgmr1996434/
http://www.austlii.edu.au/au/legis/wa/consol_reg/lgmr1996434/
http://www.austlii.edu.au/au/legis/wa/consol_reg/lgr1996341/s5.html
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CONSULTATION 

Chief Executive Officer 
 
COMMENT 

The following has been taken directly from the OAG’s report under attachment 
ARC240621.4.1.A. 
“Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements In accordance with the Local 
Government (Audit) Regulations 1996 I report that:  

(i) In my opinion, the following material matters indicate significant adverse trends in the 
financial position of the Shire: a. The Operating Surplus Ratio and the Asset Renewal 
Funding Ratio have been below the Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural 
Industries’ standard for the past 3 years. The financial ratios are reported at Note 31 to the 
financial report.Page 3 of 3  

(ii) (ii) The following material matters indicating non-compliance with Part 6 of the Local 
Government Act 1995, the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 
or applicable financial controls of any other written law were identified during the course of 
my audit:  

 
a. The Shire’s procurement and contract management practices for the Mt Weld Road 
upgrade project failed to provide sufficient oversight required to manage associated 
risks, monitor costs and deliver value for money as required by the Shire’s purchasing 
policy.  
b. For approximately 40% of purchase transactions sampled, purchase orders were 
raised after the supplier invoice was received and there was no documentation to 
explain why purchase orders were not raised prior to the procurement of goods or 
services. This practice increases the likelihood of unauthorised expenditure occurring 
and going undetected.  
c. For approximately 20% of purchase transactions sampled, there was inadequate or 
no evidence that a sufficient number of quotations were obtained to test the market 
and no documentation to explain why other quotes were not sought. This practice 
increases the likelihood of not receiving value for money in procurement.  
d. A review of the appropriateness and effectiveness of the Shire’s financial 
management systems and procedures was not completed. Regulation 5(2)(c) of the 
Financial Management Regulations requires a review to take place at least once in 
every three financial years.” 
Regarding point d which relates to attachment ARC 240621 4.1.1C – The council 
engaged Moore Australia to undertake this review under the Northern Goldfields 
Compliance Group banner and was planned to be undertaken in the 2019/2020 
financial year. This has not eventuated, and it has been followed up with Moore 
Australia to complete as soon as practicable.  
In general, the Council has amended its purchasing policy in 2020 as the requirements 
of the existing policy could not be met. The results will be further known at the 
conclusion of the 2021 audit; however, the expectation is that there has been an 
improvement.  
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RESOLUTION                                   COUNCIL DECISION/PROCEDURAL MOTION 
 

MOVED: Cr R Weldon SECONDED: Cr G Buckmaster 

 

That the Audit and Risk Committee recommends to the Council that the Annual 
Management Letter,The Independent Auditors Report and findings identified 
during the Final Audit – significant for the year ending 30 June 2020 as prepared 
by the Office of Auditor General and RSM  be accepted in accordance and that 
the reports and attachments ARC240621.4.1.A, ARC240621.4.1.B and 
ARC240621.4.1.C be published on the Shire of Laverton website in accordance 
with the Local Government Act 1995. 

 

 
CARRIED 5/0 
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Auditor General 
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7th Floor Albert Facey House 469 Wellington Street Perth  MAIL TO: Perth BC PO Box 8489 Perth WA 6849  TEL: 08 6557 7500  FAX: 08 6557 7600 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the Councillors of the Shire of Laverton 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
Opinion 
I have audited the annual financial report of the Shire of Laverton (the Shire) which comprises 
the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2020, and the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income by Nature or Type, Statement of Comprehensive Income by Program, Statement of 
Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and Rate Setting Statement for the year then 
ended, as well as notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information, and the Statement by the Chief Executive Officer. 
 
In my opinion the annual financial report of the Shire of Laverton: 

(i) is based on proper accounts and records; and 
(ii) fairly represents, in all material respects, the results of the operations of the Shire for 

the year ended 30 June 2020 and its financial position at the end of that period in 
accordance with the Local Government Act 1995 (the Act) and, to the extent that they 
are not inconsistent with the Act, Australian Accounting Standards. 

 
Basis for Opinion 
I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Report section of my report. I am independent of the Shire in accordance with the 
Auditor General Act 2006 and the relevant ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional 
and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the 
Code) that are relevant to my audit of the annual financial report. I have also fulfilled my other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. I believe that the audit evidence I have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. 
 
Emphasis of Matter – Basis of Accounting 
I draw attention to Notes 1 and 9 to the annual financial report, which describe the basis of 
accounting. The annual financial report has been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the 
Shire’s financial reporting responsibilities under the Act, including the Local Government 
(Financial Management) Regulations 1996 (Regulations). My opinion is not modified in respect 
of these matters: 

(i) Regulation 17A of the Regulations requires a local government to measure vested 
improvements at fair value and the associated vested land at zero cost. This is a 
departure from AASB 16 Leases which would have required the entity to measure the 
vested improvements also at zero cost.  

(ii) In respect of the comparatives for the previous year ended 30 June 2019, Regulation 
16 of the Regulations did not allow a local government to recognise some categories of 
land, including land under roads, as assets in the annual financial report.  
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Responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer and Council for the Financial Report 
The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Shire is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the annual financial report in accordance with the requirements of the Act, the 
Regulations and, to the extent that they are not inconsistent with the Act, Australian Accounting 
Standards. The CEO is also responsible for such internal control as the CEO determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of the annual financial report that is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the annual financial report, the CEO is responsible for assessing the Shire’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the State Government has made decisions 
affecting the continued existence of the Shire. 
 
The Council is responsible for overseeing the Shire’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Report 
The objectives of my audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual 
financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of the annual financial report. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control. 
 
A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the annual financial report is located 
on the Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at 
https://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar4.pdf. This description forms part of my 
auditor’s report. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
In accordance with the Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996 I report that: 

(i) In my opinion, the following material matters indicate significant adverse trends in the 
financial position of the Shire: 

a. The Operating Surplus Ratio and the Asset Renewal Funding Ratio have been 
below the Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries’ 
standard for the past 3 years. The financial ratios are reported at Note 31 to the 
financial report. 
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(ii) The following material matters indicating non-compliance with Part 6 of the Local 
Government Act 1995, the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 
1996 or applicable financial controls of any other written law were identified during the 
course of my audit: 

a. The Shire’s procurement and contract management practices for the Mt Weld 
Road upgrade project failed to provide sufficient oversight required to manage 
associated risks, monitor costs and deliver value for money as required by the 
Shire’s purchasing policy. 

b. For approximately 40% of purchase transactions sampled, purchase orders 
were raised after the supplier invoice was received and there was no 
documentation to explain why purchase orders were not raised prior to the 
procurement of goods or services. This practice increases the likelihood of 
unauthorised expenditure occurring and going undetected. 

c. For approximately 20% of purchase transactions sampled, there was 
inadequate or no evidence that a sufficient number of quotations were obtained 
to test the market and no documentation to explain why other quotes were not 
sought. This practice increases the likelihood of not receiving value for money in 
procurement. 

d. A review of the appropriateness and effectiveness of the Shire’s financial 
management systems and procedures was not completed. Regulation 5(2)(c) of 
the Financial Management Regulations requires a review to take place at least 
once in every three financial years.  

(iii) All required information and explanations were obtained by me. 
(iv) All audit procedures were satisfactorily completed. 
(v) In my opinion, the Asset Consumption Ratio and the Asset Renewal Funding Ratio 

included in the annual financial report were supported by verifiable information and 
reasonable assumptions. 

 
Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Report 
This auditor’s report relates to the annual financial report of the Shire of Laverton for the year 
ended 30 June 2020 included on the Shire’s website. The Shire’s management is responsible 
for the integrity of the Shire’s website. This audit does not provide assurance on the integrity of 
the Shire’s website. The auditor’s report refers only to the annual financial report described 
above. It does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been 
hyperlinked to/from this annual financial report. If users of the annual financial report are 
concerned with the inherent risks arising from publication on a website, they are advised to 
refer to the hard copy of the audited annual financial report to confirm the information 
contained in this website version of the annual financial report. 
 
 

 
GRANT ROBINSON 
ASSISTANT AUDITOR GENERAL FINANCIAL AUDIT 
Delegate of the Auditor General for Western Australia 
Perth, Western Australia 
4 June 2021 
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Our Ref: 7942 

Mr Peter Naylor 
Chief Executive Officer 
Shire of Laverton 
PO Box 42 
LAVERTON   WA  6440 

Dear Mr Naylor 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

The Office has completed the audit of the annual financial report for your Shire. In accordance with 
section 7.12AD (2) of the Local Government Act 1995 (the Act), we enclose the Auditor General’s 
auditor’s report, together with the audited annual financial report.  

We have also forwarded the reports to the President and the Minister for Local Government, as 
required by the Act. You are required to publish the annual report, including the auditor’s report and 
the audited financial report, on your Shire’s official website within 14 days after the annual report 
has been accepted by your Council.  

Matters of regulatory non-compliance and adverse trends in the financial position are reported on 
pages 2 and 3 of the auditor’s report. 

Management Control Issue 
I would like to draw your attention to the attached deficiency that was identified during the course of 
the final audit. The matter has been discussed with management and their comments have been 
included in the attachment. 

Please note that the purpose of our audit was to express an opinion on the financial report. The 
audit included consideration of internal control relevant to the preparation of the financial report in 
order to design audit procedures that were appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control.  

An audit is not designed to identify all internal control deficiencies that may require management 
attention. It is possible that irregularities and deficiencies may have occurred and not been 
identified as a result of our audit. 

This letter has been provided for the purposes of the Shire and the Minister for Local Government 
and may not be suitable for other purposes. 

I would like to take this opportunity to thank you, the management and the staff of the Shire for their 
cooperation with the audit team during our audit. 

Feel free to contact me on 6557 7536 if you would like to discuss any matters concerning the audit. 

Yours faithfully 

EFTHALIA SAMARAS 
SENIOR DIRECTOR 
FINANCIAL AUDIT 
4 June 2021 

Attach 

7th Floor, Albert Facey House 
469 Wellington Street, Perth 

Mail to: Perth BC 
PO Box 8489 

PERTH  WA  6849 

Tel: 08 6557 7500 
Fax: 08 6557 7600 

Email: info@audit.wa.gov.au 

ATTACHMENT ARC240621.4.1.B



ATTACHMENT 
 

SHIRE OF LAVERTON 

PERIOD OF AUDIT: 1 JULY 2019 TO 30 JUNE 2020 

FINDINGS IDENTIFIED DURING THE FINAL AUDIT 

 

 Page 1 of 2 
 

INDEX OF FINDINGS 
RATING 

 Significant Moderate Minor 

1. Non-compliance with Financial Management 
Regulation 5(2)(c)  

   

 

KEY TO RATINGS 
The ratings in this management letter are based on the audit team’s assessment of risks and 
concerns with respect to the probability and/or consequence of adverse outcomes if action is 
not taken. We consider these potential adverse outcomes in the context of both quantitative 
impact (for example financial loss) and qualitative impact (for example inefficiency, non-
compliance, poor service to the public or loss of public confidence). 
 

Significant - Those findings where there is potentially a significant risk to the entity 
should the finding not be addressed by the entity promptly.  

Moderate - Those findings which are of sufficient concern to warrant action being taken 
by the entity as soon as practicable. 

Minor - Those findings that are not of primary concern but still warrant action being 
taken. 

 
  

ARC240621.4.1.C
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ATTACHMENT 
 

SHIRE OF LAVERTON 

PERIOD OF AUDIT: 1 JULY 2019 TO 30 JUNE 2020 

FINDINGS IDENTIFIED DURING THE FINAL AUDIT 

 

 Page 2 of 2 
 

1. Non-compliance with Financial Management Regulation 5(2)(c) 
 
 
Finding 
Regulation 5(2)(c) of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 
requires the Chief Executive Officer to undertake a review of the appropriateness and 
effectiveness of the Shire’s financial management systems and procedures at least once in 
every three financial years. During the audit we noted the Shire reported that it had failed to 
complete the review within three years prior to 31 December 2019.  
 
Rating: Significant  
Implication 
Failure to undertake a review of the appropriateness and effectiveness of the Shire’s financial 
management systems and procedures at least once in every three financial year’s is a breach 
of regulation 5(2)(c) of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996. In 
addition, non-compliance with regulation 5(2)(c) increases the risk that the Shire’s financial 
management systems and procedures may not be fit for purpose and resources of the Shire 
are not being as effectively and efficiently managed as possible.   
 
Recommendation 
The Shire should establish systems and procedures to ensure ongoing compliance with 
regulation 5(2)(c) of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996. 
 
Management comment 
This is a fair call and as the matter was to be addressed through the Northern Goldfields 
Compliance Audit Group, which was on the books for completion in 2019/2020.  
 
Responsible position: Chief Executive Officer 
Completion date:   May 2022  

ARC240621.4.1.C
 Page 2 of 2
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4.2    ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2020 

 

REPORT TO WHICH 
MEETING/COMMITTEE  

Audit and Risk committee of the Council, 24 
June 2021 

DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST The author has no financial interest in the 
matter presented to the Council 

OWNER/APPLICANT  Not applicable 

AUTHOR Phil Marshall, Deputy Chief Executive 
Officer 

RESPONSIBLE OFFICER Peter Naylor, Chief Executive Officer  

PREVIOUS MEETING 
REFERENCE IF APPLICABLE  

Last Annual Report was considered at the 
23 April 2020 meeting of the Audit and Risk 
Committee 

 
MATTER FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE COUNCIL 

That the Audit and Risk Committee receive and consider the Annual Report for the 
year ending 30 June 2020 and recommend to the full Council meeting for adoption of 
the Annual Report and setting of the Annual Electors meeting date. 

ATTACHMENTS 

ARC240621.4.2.A Shire of Laverton Annual Report for the 30 June 2020 

ARC240621.4.2.B             Shire of Laverton Financial Statements for the 30 June 2020 

 
BACKGROUND 

The Audit Report for the 2019/2020 Annual Financial Statements were received from 
the Office of Auditor General (OAG) on the 4 of June 2021. The Annual Report is to 
be accepted by the Shire of Laverton no later than two months after the Auditor’s 
Report becomes available in accordance with the Local Government Act 1995, section 
5.27(2) refers. 

STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS 

Local Government Act 1995 

 

1.3. Content and intent  

 (2) This Act is intended to result in —  

 (a) better decision-making by local governments; and 

 (b) greater community participation in the decisions and affairs of local 
governments; and 

 (c) greater accountability of local governments to their communities; and 

 (d) more efficient and effective local government. 

 (3) In carrying out its functions a local government is to use its best endeavours 
to meet the needs of current and future generations through an integration of 
environmental protection, social advancement, and economic prosperity. 
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2.7. Role of council  

 (1) The council —  

 (a) governs the local government’s affairs; and 

 (b) is responsible for the performance of the local government’s functions. 

 (2) Without limiting subsection (1), the council is to —  

 (a) oversee the allocation of the local government’s finances and 
resources; and 

 (b) determine the local government’s policies. 

3.1. General function 

 (1) The general function of a local government is to provide for the good 
government of persons in its district. 

 (2) The scope of the general function of a local government is to be construed in 
the context of its other functions under this Act or any other written law and 
any constraints imposed by this Act or any other written law on the 
performance of its functions. 

 (3) A liberal approach is to be taken to the construction of the scope of the general 
function of a local government. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1995 - SECT 5.53 

5.53         Annual reports 

        (1)         The local government is to prepare an annual report for each financial 
year.  

        (2)         The annual report is to contain —   

            (a)         a report from the mayor or president; and  

            (b)         a report from the CEO; and  

            (e)         an overview of the plan for the future of the district made in accordance 
with section 5.56, including major initiatives that are proposed to 
commence or to continue in the next financial year; and  

            (f)          the financial report for the financial year; and  

        (g)         such information as may be prescribed in relation to the payments 
made to employees; and  

(h)         the auditor’s report prepared under section 7.9(1) or 7.12AD(1) for the 
financial year; and  

(ha)         a matter on which a report must be made under section 29(2) of 
the Disability Services Act 1993 ; and  
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(hb)         details of entries made under section 5.121 during the financial year 
in the register of complaints, including —  

                  (i)         the number of complaints recorded in the register of complaints; 
and  

                  (ii)         how the recorded complaints were dealt with; and  

                  (iii)         any other details that the regulations may require;  

                  and  

                  (i)         such other information as may be prescribed.  

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1995 - SECT 5.54 

5.54          Acceptance of annual reports 

        (1)         Subject to subsection (2), the annual report for a financial year is to be 
accepted* by the local government no later than 31 December after that 
financial year.  

        * Absolute majority required.  

        (2)         If the auditor’s report is not available in time for the annual report for a 
financial year to be accepted by 31 December after that financial year, 
the annual report is to be accepted by the local government no later than 
2 months after the auditor’s report becomes available.  

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1995 - SECT 5.55 

5.55         Notice of annual reports 

The CEO is to give local public notice of the availability of the annual report 
as soon as practicable after the report has been accepted by the local 
government.  

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1995 - SECT 5.27 

5.27        Electors’ general meetings 

(1)         A general meeting of the electors of a district is to be held once every 
financial year.  

        (2)         A general meeting is to be held on a day selected by the local government 
but not more than 56 days after the local government accepts the annual 
report for the previous financial year.  
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STRATEGIC PLAN IMPLICATIONS 

Civic Leadership Objective - A financially strong and knowledgeable Shire, leading an 
empowered community. 

➢ Outcome 4.3 Improved planning  
➢ 4.3.1 Continue to review and improve organisational plans.  
➢ 4.3.2 Seek high level of statutory compliance. 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

There are no policy implications to this report. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

The Council at the time of receiving the report has not received the final accounts for 
the audit. 

Budget allocation of $60,000 under account no 2140484 Admin- Audit Fees   

RISK MANAGEMENT  

As the Council is meeting the requirements of the Local Government Act in both the 
acceptance of the Auditors Report and the calling of the Annual Electors Meeting, the 
level of risk is very low. 

 

 
CONSULTATION 

➢ Chief Executive officer 
➢ Office of Auditor General 
➢ RSM – Auditors on behalf of the OAG 
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COMMENT 

The purpose of the Annual Report and acceptance is to meet statutory reporting 
requirements and to set a date for the Annual Electors Meeting to be within 56 days 
of the 4 June 2020, and the intended date of 22 July 2021 is well within this timeline. 

RESOLUTION                                   COUNCIL DECISION/PROCEDURAL MOTION 
 

MOVED: Cr R Prentice SECONDED: Cr G Buckmaster 

1. That the Audit and Risk Committee recommends to the Council that by an 
absolute majority in accordance with section 5.54 of the Local Goverment 
Act 1995 ACCEPT the Annual Report and the Financial Statements for the 
year ending 30 June 2020 as shown as attachment ARC240621.4.2.A and 
attachment ARC240621.4.2.B respectively. 
 

2. That the Audit and Risk Committee recommends to the Council to set the 
Electors General Meeting in accordance with section 5.27 of the Local 
Government Act 1995 to be held on Thursday the 22 July 2021 at 4.00pm 
in the Council Chambers to present the Annual Report for the year ending 
30 June 2020. 

 
CARRIED 5/0 
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ABOUT US 
 
Welcome to the Shire of Laverton – Discover the Outback Spirit! 
 
Covering some 183,198km2 of predominantly desert and pastoral country, 
Laverton has something for everyone, from spinifex plains, mulga woodlands 
and unique granite rock outcrops to rich Aboriginal and European History and 
Culture. 
 
Wongi people, collectively known as Wongutha or Wankatja people, have 
occupied the Laverton area for thousands of years. Their first known contact 
with Europeans was around 1860 when Sir John Forrest travelled through the 
area on an expedition to search for the remains of Ludwig Leichardt. 
Many other explorers followed Forrest, including Frank Hann and David 
Carnegie, surviving by the teachings and knowledge of the Aboriginal people. 
 
These early explorers are recognised in the Great Beyond Visitor Centre – Home 
Of the Explorers Hall of Fame. 
 
During the 1880’s, sandalwood cutters travelled through the area looking for the 
valuable aromatic timber and their tracks opened up much of the region. In the 
decades since, many tonnes of sandalwood have been exported from the 
Laverton district. 
 
In 1886 gold was discovered in the area – suddenly eager prospectors arrived in 
droves from Coolgardie, eager to strike it rich. The rapidly growing settlement 
was soon called British Flag after the first successful mine. 
 
One such keen prospector was Dr Charles Laver, a British doctor who rode his 
bicycle from Coolgardie to the Laverton area the same year. He soon became 
an enthusiastic promoter of the region and travelled back to Britain a number 
of times to raise funds for local mining ventures, however his priority remained 
to attend to the sick and injured. He had an excellent rapport with his coworkers 
and patients and got on very well with the local Aboriginal people. 
 
Without his energy (and his capital) Laverton may well have faded away at this 
point. 
 
By 1897 an informal town had sprung up to the west side of the Craiggiemore 
mine. This proved an unsuitable location for the permanent settlement, so an 
alternate site was chosen about three kilometers away. In July 1900 the new 
town was gazetted as Laverton, in honour of Dr. Laver who had done so much 
to ensure the prosperity of the area. 
 
Today the town is an important service Centre for a range of mines that operate 
in the area, for the continuing pastoral industry and for the people of the 
Western Desert regions. Laverton is also an important tourism hub, acting as a 
True gateway to Australia’s outback. 
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OUR VISION 

Aspirations and Values 
Our community identified the following aspirations and 

values: 

• An oasis for locals and visitors. 

• Oasis in the desert. 

• A harmonious and sustainable community. 

• A healthy and vibrant place to live, work and 

visit. 

• A place we are proud of. 

• A memorable destination; and 

• A thriving green and attractive hub 

 

 

 

The Shire of Laverton will strive to work with the 

community to fulfil their needs and support their 

aspirations while acting with fairness and demonstrating 

leadership. 
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Community Strategic Plan - Summary of Objectives and Outcomes 

The Shire of Laverton delivers services to its community in line with four key 

objectives set out within this Plan, being: social, economic, environment and civic 

leadership. 

Each of the four objectives has several desired outcomes Council is aiming to 

achieve over the 10+ years of this Plan. 

The following table summarises the strategic objectives of achieving the vision and 

the desired outcomes of working towards these objectives. 

 

 

 

  Objectives Outcomes 

SO
C

IA
L 

Proud, spirited, 

harmonious and 

connected 

community 

• A strong sense of community pride and ownership 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 Prosperous local 

economy attracting 

businesses, 

opportunities, and 

people 

• Sustainable tourism  

• Improved economic development opportunities 

EN
V

IR
O

N
M

EN
T 

Revitalised, green, 

welcoming, and safe 

natural and built 

environment 

• Safe and efficient transport network  

• Modern, well maintained Other Built Infrastructure 

• Clean, safe, and tidy environment 

C
IV

IC
 L

EA
D

ER
SH

IP
 

A financially strong 

and knowledgeable 

Shire, leading an 

empowered 

community 

• Effective communication and stakeholder engagement 

• Organisational Development 

• Improved planning 
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SHIRE PRESIDENTS REPORT 

 In opening, I would like to thank my fellow Councillors 

in their support and allowing us as a group to ensure that the Shire of Laverton is seen 

in a positive light in so many circles. It is a pleasure to represent the Council. 

The following is a brief summary of what has occurred in the last 12 months and the 

major issues which have impacted on the Council along with the myriad of meetings 

and representations made on behalf of Council.  

Covid-19 played a major interruption in January 2020 and Laverton was impacted 

upon with the restrictions of tourists travelling both  intrastate  and interstate and also 

the overseas tarvellers who are wanting the adventure and heat of the outback.  

The Council continues with the established agreement with the Pier Street Medical 

practice to provide medical services to the town and district. This is essential to ensure 

that there is medical services at the hospital and for the community. The support to 

the medical services is supplemented by contributions from the mining companies 

within the Shire area. Furthermore, the essential aspect of the new hospital only 

defines the importance of providing the medical service to the new hospital and the 

council is continuing to ensure that the hospital is built and the appropriate funding is 

provided for the completion of this facility.  

Following approval of Government funding for up to 50km of roadworks upgrading of 

the Great Central Road, as part of the Outback Way Highway project.  The Outback 

Way continues to gather interest and funding $40.5 million has been secured to 

undertake further construction and sealing of further sections of this road.  

The Federal government has additionally provided another $115 million to keep the 

project rolling along and it was pleasing to see the interest of the Federal government 

with the Deputy Prime Minister visiting Laverton to see the works first hand.  

The Outback Highway Committee made up of local governments and through their 

General Manger is further seeking additional funding to ensure that the entire road will 

receive funding to complete the seal from Laverton to Winton in Queensland.  
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OHDC Annual General Meeting and funding announcement by Deputy Prime 

Minister Michael McCormack. 
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The 2020 Sheila Laver Award was presented to Councillor Robyn Prentice in 

recognition of her service to the community of Laverton. 

The Department of Social Services is responsible for the rollout of the Cashless Debit 

Card Program and the Council continues to provide a space at the Community 

Development Office and three staff members are employed on a part time basis 

(funded by DSS) to assist in continuation of the roll out. It has been a success to date 

and hopefully this initiative continues.  

The Council allocated $450,000.00 in its budget to upgrade the lighting at the Laverton 

Airport, with 50% funded by the Department of Transport through the Regional Airport 

Development Scheme in accordance with the Shire of Laverton Airport Master Plan 

and this upgrade has been completed as the council further plans to extend the airport 

infrastructure as charter flights regularly are utilising the airport.  

The Council considered the expansion of the Great Beyond with an extension of this 

wonderful facility with a building cost of $2.6 million with matching Council funds and 

support from State Government with a grant of $1.3million. The aim is to future proof 

the Council and capture the market as Outback Highway continues to be sealed and 

the visitor increases accordingly.  

The Laverton Community Hub Project has been completed and this magnificent facility 

will be open for the 2019/20 swimming pool season by the Premier, Mark McGowan 

and Minister MacTiernan present.  

The cost of the new build pool, and the renovation of the town hall was $8,252,964.00 

and made up as follows: 

Funding Bodies Amount 

Sport and Recreation $850,000.00 

Lottery West $678,362.00 

Royalties for regions $4,717,815.00 

Council $2,006,787.00 

Total  $8,252,964.00 
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Cr 

 

Cr Patrick Hill with the Premier Mark McGowan, Regional Development Minister 

Alannah MacTiernan at the official opening of the Aquatic Centre. 
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An overview of the new Aquatic Centre 

 

Inside the Town Hall 
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As the Aquatic Centre sits in the townscape  

Source: Source: WA Mineral and Petroleum Statistics Digest 2018/19 and 2019/20 

Goldfields-Esperance Region Value of minerals and petroleum by region by local 

government area 

   

  2018/19 2019/20    

Coolgardie 3,418,087,046 3,594,037,264    

Kalgoorlie-Boulder 2,051,269,360 2,829,223,269    

Laverton 2,605,983,116 3,675,188,884    

Leonora 1,919,979,840 2,264,283,820    

Ravensthorpe and 

Dundas 

883,284,841 126,428,747    

Menzies  706,857,131 845,694,243    

Esperance Combined with Menzies 104,107,650    

Goldfields-

Esperance Total 

11,585,461,334 14,252,408,428    
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The mining industry is the powerhouse of the community with the council deriving 94% 

of its rates income from the mining industry. The growth can be identified with Laverton 

being the leader within The Goldfields-Esperance Region for value of mining in each 

local government region.  

In closing for this financial year, there is so much optimism for the future and the 

Council is ready and willing to lead the community into another fruitful year where the 

many projects being considered will come to fruition. 

I again personally thank all the councilors for their support and the Chief Executive 

Officer Peter Naylor who admirably leads the administration to achieve for the 

community. 

 

Patrick Hill 

Shire President 

 

COUNCILLOR RENUMERATION 

In accordance with the Local government Act 1995 and under the 

guidelines of the State Salaries & Allowances Tribunal, the following 

allowances were paid to Councillors in 2019/2020 financial year. 

President (including Presidents Allowance) $33,400.00 

Deputy President (including Deputy Presidents Allowance) $15,400.00 

Councillors  $ 9,400.00 
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS REPORT 

  

 

In opening, the 2019/2020 financial year has been an interesting one with the influence 

around the world of Covid-19. Whilst Laverton has gone about business as normal, 

the rest of the world has not fared well.  

The Community Hub which includes the new Pool, and the renovation of the Town hall 

has been finalized, it certainly provides facilities which can be used by the wider 

community and allows the community to participate should they wish to with quality 

facilities. I find that Council has a dedicated work force, and they produce excellent 

results through trying conditions of being a remote community. 

The Council and especially the leadership of the Shire President and councillors has 

been refreshing in the support of undertaking initiatives for the community. 

In closing, I would like to thank the community, councillors and staff for their assistance 

and commitment to the future of Laverton.  

The following is a summary of items of interest which have been undertaken for and 

with the Laverton Community over the last 12 months and reflects the diversified 

nature of work undertaken by the council for the community. 

 

Peter Naylor 

Chief Executive Officer 
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Works and Services  

Flood Damage  

Works continued from the previous year’s flood damage with the following roads 

being reinstated to previous flood damage status: 

➢ Bandya Road 

➢ Erlistoun Road 

➢ Prenti Downs Road 

➢ White Cliffs – Yamarna Road 

➢ Great Central Road 

➢ Lake Wells Rd, etc. 

 

 

 

The following Roadworks projects including sealing, gravel re-sheeting etc. were 

completed in the 2019/2020 financial year. 

➢ Mount Margaret Road  

➢ Bandya Road  

➢ Black Spot funding for Bandya Road Creek Crossing  

➢ Old Laverton Road  

➢ Great Central Road 

➢ Mt Weld Road   
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Depicting the standard of road works achieved. 

 

Plant Replacement  

➢ Various Council vehicles and a Light truck 

 

Laverton Cemetery 

The Laverton Cemetery received an upgrade, and the following items were attended 

to bring it back to a standard with the council committing funds for: 

 

Laverton Car Park  

 

➢ New Car Park to the south of the existing entrance and perimeter fencing  

➢ Shelters and seating   
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Laverton Cemetery Shelter 

 

 

Laverton airport with extensions to the Apron and Taxi - Way 
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Great Beyond 

Stage 2 Expansion of the Great Beyond Visitor Centre 

After a two year mission to secure funding for the Stage 2 Expansion of the Great 

Beyond Visitor Centre, the project is set to become reality after funding was secured 

from the WA State Government. 

Premier Mark McGowan, Regional Development Minister Alannah MacTiernan and 

local Member for Mining & Pastoral Kyle McGinn visited Laverton in September 2019 

to announce a State Government contribution of $1.3m to the project.  

Expansion to the Centre will include a new entry foyer, merchandise area and café; 

expanded administration office, public amenities, and storage areas; improved 

disability access to interpretive displays; undercover alfresco dining space; and the 

Giles Oasis cultural garden and interactive displays.  

 

Promotional Opportunities & Tourism Initiatives 

Many opportunities to positively promote our region arose throughout 2019/20. Staff 

have completed the GEMS (Goldfields Esperance Must See) project with a website 

and APP now live. The GEMS project was funded by the Goldfields Esperance 

Development Commissions’ economic development grant with the intention of 

encouraging visitors and residents to explore the region. Now established, the 

GEMS project will reply on local councils, business, and attractions to maintain their 

information.  
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Electric Pictures had another successful season of filming Aussie Gold Hunters 

which is set to air in mid-2020. Both Aussie Gold Hunters & Outback Opal Hunters 

featured miners from the Laverton Area and will be aired on Foxtel’s Discovery 

Channel.  

The Shire of Laverton was host to the 2019 Outback Highway Development Council 

(OHDC) Annual General Meeting. Members from Alice Springs, Boulia, Winton, the 

Ngaanyatjarra Lands and local councils, organisations and mining companies 

attended the three day AGM and workshops. Each year the OHDC use this time to 

do forward planning and collaborate on several projects to do with infrastructure, 

tourism, and employment.  

Additional to the AGM, staff of the Great Beyond assisted renowned Australian 

photographer Sean Scott with his trip across the Outback Way by providing 

information on things to see and do along the route and in the Laverton area. The 

aerial and night-time photography from the adventure turned out to be nothing short 

of amazing. Great Beyond staff also helped with the update of the Geocache trail 

with the replacement of Cache Boxes, update of coordinates and a short training in 

the online maintenance required for the Caches.  

Some new additions to the Great Beyond gift shop are some local made products. 

The Great Beyond has facilitated the making, branding, and selling of ‘Bush 

Medicine’ made by local resident Raylene Evans. The Bush Medicine has proven to 

be a popular item with regular visitors from the region coming in to stock up on the 

well-known product. Additional to this, the Great Beyond has partnered Martna 

Sandalwood to be a stockist of their new Pulse Point Sandalwood Oil. Martna 

Sandalwood is a Leonora built business that is attempting to sustain the sandalwood 

industry by harvesting the oil from dead sandalwood trees, while planting new trees 

in their place. Their harvesting area includes land northwest of Laverton, and the 

initial launch of their product has been prosperous. 

Great Beyond Staff have completed an education and development course with the 

Australian Museums & Galleries Association (WA branch) during 2019/20. The 

mentoring style course was designed to ensure that organisations across the state 

are up to date with policies, procedures and standards as well as providing practical 

tools, advice and support for volunteers and staff of museums. The course was held 

over eight months and included four days hands on training in Kalgoorlie. Staff from 

the AMaGA branch visited Laverton and took a tour of our facilities, collections, and 

attractions in town.  

 

Events 

Again, Shire staff hosted several events throughout the year, the Great Beyond was 

proud to facilitate or host a number of these events including the town’s NAIDOC 

Celebrations in Kalgoorlie, Carols by Candlelight, the CRC’s annual Christmas Lights 

Competition and Clean Up Australia Day.  
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Although COVID-19 has had an impact on the preparation of Laverfest, planning for 

the festivities is still going ahead. 

 

Laverton Men’s Shed 

Through grant funding, fundraising and donations from local mining companies & the 

Shire of Laverton, the members of the Laverton Men’s Shed were able to build a 

purpose built shed on the site of the Old Court House. Members and guests officially 

opened the ‘Shed’ on Saturday 27th July 2019 and have been busy setting the facility 

up for weekly gatherings. 

 

See pictures below.  

 
AMaGA Western Australia Executive Director, Natalie Evans, visited Laverton along 

with Projects and Communications Coordinator Jess Davies following the ‘Open the 

Doors’ training program in Kalgoorlie. Photo: AMaGA Facebook 

ARC240621.4.2.A
 Page 18 of 38



Annual Report for the Shire of Laverton WA 30 June 2020 
 

19 
 

 

 

 

Clean Up Australia Day, March 2020 
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Men’s Shed members cutting the ribbon at the official opening of the new Shed. 

Community Resource Centre 

The Laverton Community Resource Centre continues to provide a needed and 

popular service to the Laverton Community. The programs, workshops, events, and 

services we provided throughout 2018-19 promoted inclusiveness, involvement, 

engagement and assisted with strengthening relationships with community and 

partnerships with local and visiting businesses, services, and organisations.  
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Throughout 2018-19 Laverton CRC met and exceeded in some areas our Service 

Delivery contractual requirements with the Department of Primary Industries and 

Regional Development. The Service Level Outcomes the CRC must provide 

deliverables for are.  

• SLO 1- Community members are provided with access to state government and 
community information and services. 

• SLO2- Local Businesses and Workforce have access to activities and initiatives 
that improve skills and capacity to foster economic growth in the local 
community. 

• SLO3- Community members have access to activities and initiatives that create 
or improve community connectedness and capacity. 

•  
The table below provides statistical information of people utilising the CRC services.   

SLO1 Services Statistics 

Community members are 
provided with access to state 
government and community 
information and services 

Government Access 
Point 

337 customers utilized the 
Government Access Point 

 Video Conference Video Conference was utilized 
9 times 

 Office Space Utilised 24 times by 
commercial agencies and 19 
times by government 
agencies. 

 IT Support 242 customers received IT 
support 

SLO 2 Workshops/Events Statistics 

Local Businesses and 
Workforce have access to 
activities and initiatives that 
improve skills and capacity to 
foster economic growth in the 
local community. 

14 workshops and 
events delivered 

80 customers accessed the 
workshops and events 

SLO 3 Programs/Events Statistics 

Community members have 
access to activities and 
initiatives that create or 
improve community 
connectedness and capacity. 
 

Early Literacy Better 
Beginnings program 

240 children and 175 parents 
attended  

 Seniors Morning 
Tea 

59 seniors attended the 10 
morning teas 

  14 events 
throughout 2018-19 

419 people attended the 
events 

 
The honeycomb diagram provides a snapshot of the 2018-19 deliverables the CRC 

has provided to Laverton for each service level outcome. 
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CRC highlights throughout 2018-19 include. 

St John First Aid Course 

Community Market Day 
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National Indigenous Literacy Day 

 

 

 

 

 

Christmas Lights Competition 
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NAIDOC Celebrations 
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Community Development  

Australia Day 2020 

Over 125 people joined the Council in celebrating Australia Day with a Pool Party, 

fun activities, and a BBQ Breakfast.  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Shire of Laverton celebrates International Day of People with Disability  

International Day of People with Disability (IDPwD) is a United 

Nations Day that promotes inclusivity and celebrates the 

achievements and contributions of people with disability.  

By gathering to celebrate this day, we can help to break down 

barriers for the 4.3 million Australians living with disability and 

contribute to positive change in our community.  

The Shire of Laverton commemorated International Day of 

People with Disability on Monday 2 December 2019, by holding 

a Pool Party – a fun-filled afternoon of games, activities, an 

Aquafit session, and a delicious sausage sizzle at the newly 

built, accessible Aquatic Centre. 

Following its success, we aim to make celebrating IDPwD an 

annual event. Working together through the Shire of Laverton’s 

Disability Access and Inclusion Plan, (DAIP) 2019 to 2024, we 

hope to remove some of the barriers for people with disability 

and create a more inclusive community for people to reach their full potential. was 

launched at the event.  

Laverton welcomes Coolgardie youth in a Swim 4 Fruit 

Challenge 

Continuing with a swimming pool theme, The Laverton Aquatic 

Centre have been running a popular and very successful Royal 

Life Saving Society, Swim 4 Fruit program since October 2019.  

Supported by Laverton Youth Services, this fun initiative aims to 
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get kids active in the pool, improving their swimming skills and safety around 

water and promotes healthy lifestyle habits to the community. The Shire of 

Coolgardie have been running a similar program.  

 The two Aquatic Managers Janine Rowe (Laverton), Kathy Brooking 

(Coolgardie), Lifeguard Krystal Thomson and Laverton Youth Services, 

organised a Swim 4 Fruit Fun Challenge at Laverton pool in early February.   

Laverton Aquatic Centre welcomed 13 children and staff from 

Coolgardie, for an afternoon of swimming activities and games, 

followed by a BBQ lunch with plenty of healthy fruit too! 

Laverton youth have been invited to a reciprocal trip to Coolgardie 

pool next season. 

Shire of Laverton Awards 

The Shire of Laverton’s Youth Services team were selected as one of the top three 

finalists for the Western Australian Regional Achievement and Community 

Awards - Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries Making a 

Difference Award 

The Youth Services team were recognised for their work at the Local Government 

Children’s Environment and Health Policy Awards, winning in the Child Health 

and Development and Aboriginal Child Health categories. 

Remembrance Day 2019 

Remembrance Day 2019 included attendance from all the staff and children from 

Laverton School. 

Appreciation goes to Xavier Murray and Sophie Taylor who beautifully presented 

readings and poems and laid a wreath on behalf of Regis Resources Ltd. 

It was wonderful to see the young people and next generation, participating in such 

an important event. 
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Laverton commemorates ANZAC Day a different way #Driveways #AtHome 

Due to COVID-19, the Shire commemorated ANZAC Day 2019 in a different way.  

The ANZAC Day 2019 service was played over a loudspeaker for residents to hear 

from their driveways and front porches. 
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Cashless Debit Card 

The Cashless Debit Card (CDC) aims to reduce the levels of harm underpinned by 

alcohol, illicit drug use and gambling, by limiting participants’ access to cash and by 

preventing the purchase of alcohol or gambling products.  

The Cashless Debit Card is testing whether reducing the amount of cash available in 

a community will reduce the overall harm caused by welfare fuelled alcohol, 

gambling, and drug misuse. 

Eighty per cent of CDC participants’ Income Support Payments, as well as other 

supplementary payments, are directed to a restricted bank account, accessed by the 

Indue debit card, with the remainder of these payments accessible through a normal 

(unrestricted) bank account.  

The CDC is being trialed in the Goldfields region and has been extended until 

December 2020. The Shire of Laverton has a local partner agreement with Indue to 

operate a front facing service to co-ordinate and implement the roll out of the 

Cashless Debit Card.  

During the period 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020, the CDC Team have been busy: 

• Helping participants in activating their CDC 

• Supporting participants in setting up an email address, CDC Indue account, 

My Gov account; learning how to check bank balances, edit their accounts 

and change passwords, setting up rent and bill payments, fund transfers and 

become more confident when self-managing their account online. 

• Providing information and referrals for participants in relation to support 

services such as money management and budgeting. 

• Supporting participants with extension declaration forms for Housing 

payments, vehicle purchase and Power of Attorney 

• Working with community to encourage individual self-help for transactions 

such as checking bank balances and arranging bank transfers. 

• Providing temporary cards to those who have lost or had a card stolen and 

replacement cards.  

• Supporting participants who wish to exit the CDC. The team have helped 10 

participants to submit and exit application, and a number of those have been 

successfully removed from the CDC. 

• Providing choices and alternative options for loan applications such as WA No 

Interest Loans and supporting with applications. The Laverton Supermarket 

has become a ‘white goods’ provider for WANILS. 

• Liaising with the Commonwealth Home Support Program (CHSP) to support 

community members with Indue and other business. 

• In the CDC building, donated clothing and small household items continue to 

be available for our local Community members to collect. Regular donations 

and contributions are received from individuals and organisations. 

The CDC Team have dealt with a total of 1,333 queries relating to the 

implementation and activation of accounts between July 2019 and June 2020. 
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Laverton Youth Services July 2019 - June 2020 

Laverton’s Youth Services Team provide a structured program of interactive, cultural, 

creative, artistic, educational, healthy, challenging, and fun activities for children and 

young people. The service operates every day after school in term time. In addition 

to this, an extensive and exciting package of activities and events are run during 

school and public holidays.  

Youth Services celebrated NAIDOC week 2019 by working with Elders to put on 

several cultural events and activities. From bush dyeing of materials made from 

plants, fruits, veggies, and other natural resources to cooking Marlu (kangaroo) tails 

and going ‘Out Bush’. 

The Curtin Volunteers helped with the school holiday activity programs and Youth 

Services provided a range of exciting fun things for the kids to do. 

 

Minarli - Boys activities. Responding to community concerns, the Laverton Youth 

Services team have set up a Responsible Motorbike Program. With a focus on riding 

responsibly, young people have been taken out of town and taught how to ride safely 

and repair their bikes by Kevin our Youth Officer, who is a qualified mechanic.  

Participation was only for those who had submitted consent forms signed by their 

Parent/Carer and who had protective clothing and helmets. 
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 The Pallet Project has been designed to enhance social and developmental 

behaviours, provide social inclusion and community connection, identify coping 

strategies, build resilience, and help young people express feelings and emotions. 

This period saw the boys build and complete shelves and tables which were 

delivered to members of community. 

 

 

 

 

 

Swim 4 Fruit program. The Laverton Aquatic Centre began running a popular and 

very successful Royal Life Saving Society, Swim 4 Fruit program. Supported by 

Laverton Youth Services, this fun initiative aims to get kids active in the pool, 

improving their swimming skills and safety around water and promotes healthy 

lifestyle habits. The program runs every Tuesday and Thursday after school 

throughout the Pool season. For every four laps each child swims, they received a 

piece of fruit.  

Perth Mentor visit. Youth Services has been actively involved with the Big Picture 

Program at Laverton School. Weekly based classroom sessions focusing on 

improving communication, interpersonal relationship skills and improve vocational 

skills and knowledge of a specific career and possible pathways. 

Big Picture students participated in a “Leaving to Learn” camp in Perth. Students 

were exposed to a range of career pathways while on camp including the 

Department of Fire and Emergency Services, St John ambulance, Carey training, 

Army, Air Force, and the Navy. In addition, students participated in some fun 

activities such as visiting the Eagles new training facility, rock climbing, trampolining, 

laser tag and Time Zone. A fantastic time was had by all!  

Healthy Cooking initiative. Following consultation with the Laverton Youth Council, 

the weekly Kidz Kitchen program was established. Every Friday after school, a 

small group of ‘chefs’ prepare and cook/bake a dish that is then eaten and shared 

together. Recipes must be researched, and a list of ingredients given to the Youth 

Officer for purchase.  
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Blue Tree Project.  The Blue Tree Project’s ‘mission is to help spark difficult 

conversations and encourage people to speak up when battling mental health 

concerns. Painting a tree blue aims to spread ‘the message that ‘it is OK to not be 

OK’, and to break down the stigma that is still largely attached to mental health.’ 

Laverton Youth Services team with a group of young people cleared and prepared 

the sites and were actively involved in painting two trees in Laverton. 

 

 

See our YouTube video from the day https://youtu.be/JUn91PZ6Rng 

The Youth Centre was closed for 3 months to comply with government restrictions 

and requirements in relation to Covid-19. Youth Services still maintained Covid safe 

contact with community via social media and care packages containing toys, books, 

and activity packs.   

During the 37 weeks of Youth Service provision within the annual reporting period a 

total of 2494 children and young people attended activities.  
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COMPLIANCE 
 
Freedom of Information 
 
Sections 96 and 97 of the Freedom of Information Act 1992 require Local 
Governments to publish an information statement annually. 
 
In summary, the Shire of Laverton’s Statement indicates that the Shire of 
Laverton is responsible for the good governance of the Shire and carries out 
functions as required including statutory compliance and provision of services 
and facilities. 
 
All Council meetings are open to the public and meeting dates and venues are 
advertised on a regular basis. Members of the public are invited to ask questions 
during Public Question Time shortly after the commencement of each meeting. 
 
The Shire of Laverton maintains records relating to the function and 
administration of the Shire and includes such documents as the Minutes of 
Meetings, Rate Book, Town Planning Scheme, Local Laws, Codes of Conduct, 
Register of Financial Interests, Register of Delegated Authority, Financial 
Statements and Electoral Rolls.  
 
These documents can be inspected free of charge at the Shire Office, 9 MacPherson 
place, Laverton during office hours. 
 
Wherever possible and practical, and in line with privacy laws, the Shire of 
Laverton makes personal information readily available free of charge. 
 
No Freedom of Information requests were made during the reporting period. 

 

Record Keeping 
 
 
The State Records Act 2000 is an Act to provide for the keeping of State records and 
for related purposes. Section 19 of the Act requires each government organisation to 
have a Record Keeping Plan that has been approved by the State Records 
Commission. 
The registration number of the recordkeeping plan is 2011029. 
 
On 17 March 2017, the State Records Commission approved the continuation of 
the Shire of Laverton Record Keeping Plan with the next review due to be 
completed and submitted to the State Records Office. 
 
The objectives of the Shire of Laverton’s Record Keeping Plan are to ensure: 
 

• Compliance with Section 28 of the State Records Act 2000, 
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• Record keeping within the Local Government is moving toward compliance with 
State Records Commission Standards and Record Management Standard AS 
ISO15489, 

• Processes are in place to facilitate the complete and accurate record of 
business transactions and decisions, 

• Recorded information can be retrieved quickly, accurately, and cheaply when 
required; and the 

• Protection and preservation of the local government’s records. 

 

Register of Minor Complaints 
 
 
Section 5.121 of the Local Government Act 1995 (Register of certain complaints 
of minor breaches) requires the complaints officer for each local government to 
maintain a Register of Complaints which records all complaints that result in 
action under section 5.110(6) (b) or (c) of the Act (Conduct of Certain Officials). 
 
Section 5.53 (2) (b) of the Local Government Act 1995 requires that details of 
entries made under section 5.121 during the year in the Register of Complaints, 
including: 
 

• The number of complaints recorded on the Register of Complaints. 

• How the recorded complaints were dealt with, and. 

• Any other details that the regulations may require to be disclosed in the 
Annual Report. 

 
In accordance with these requirements, a complaints register has been maintained. 
 
As of the 30 June 2020, no complaints were recorded. Therefore, no action was 
required. 
 

Public Interest Disclosure 
 
 
The Public Interest Disclosure Code was established by the Commissioner for 
Public Standards under section 20 of the Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003. 
 
One of the principles of the Code is not just to provide protection of those who 
make disclosures (and those who are the subject of disclosures), but also to 
encourage a system of transparency and accountability in the way government 
officials act and utilise public monies. 
 
Matters that fall into the category of public interest include: 
 

• Improper conduct (irregular or unauthorised use of public resources). 

• An offence under State Law including corruption (substantial unauthorised or 
irregular use of, or substantial mismanagement of, public monies) 
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• Administration matters generally (conduct involving substantial risk of injury to 
public health, prejudice to public safety or harm to the environment) 

 
Matters that relate to the Shire of Laverton should be referred to the Shire of 
Laverton’s Public Interest Disclosure Officer. Disclosures to the Public Interest 
Disclosure Officer can be made not just about officers of the Shire of Laverton 
but also, its elected officials. 
 
There is an obligation of the Public Interest Disclosure Officer in the Public 
Interest Disclosure Act 2003 to ensure that the disclosure is confidential and 
that the person making a disclosure is provided adequate protection from 
reprisals, civil and criminal liability, or breach of confidentiality.  
 
More information can be found at www.publicsector.wa.gov.au. 
 
The Shire of Laverton had no Public Interest Disclosures during the reporting 
Period. 

 

Disability Access and Inclusion Plan (DAIP) 
 
 
The Shire of Laverton revised the Disability Access and Inclusion Plan during 
2019/2020 and the Shire of Laverton DAIP was approved by the Department of 
Communities for the period 2019/2024. 
 
The following are general comments regarding the DAIP activities where the council 
had an involvement: 
 

• Establish a Disability Advisory Committee.  

• International Day of people with a disability with a pool party to highlight the 
facilities available at the Aquatic Centre. 

• Install pram ramps at Hawkes Place Laverton in conjunction with the staged 
footpath construction. 

• The opening of the Aquatic Centre and Town Hall which are all accessible. 
 
 

Payments to Employees 
 
 
Section 5.53 (2) (g) of the Local Government Act 1995 and Regulation 19B of 
The Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996 require all local 
Governments to report in their Annual Report, any employees receiving a salary more 
than $130,000 per annum.  
 
Set out below (in bands of $10,000) is the number of Shire employees entitled to an 
annual salary of $130,000 or more: 
 
Employees with employment under the Councils Enterprise Bargaining Agreement 
and a fixed term contract where the salary is more than $130,000: 
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Salary Range $ No of Employees 

$130,000 to $180,000 2 

$180,000 to $240,000 1 

  
Integrated Planning and Reporting 
 
In 2015/2016, Council undertook a comprehensive review of the Community Strategic 
Plan (CSP) following which the Corporate Business Plan was reviewed and updated. 
 
The Corporate Business Plan was again reviewed in 2019/2020 resulting in only 
minimal change to the Plan. 
 
The Corporate Business Plan aims to fulfil the strategic direction set by Council to 
Progress the Council’s vision while keeping with the community’s aspirations and 
values. Copies of both documents are available at the Shire Administration Office 
and on the Shire of Laverton’s website. 
 
Actions identified in the CSP are ongoing and include: 
 
 

➢ 3.1.2.1 Maintain and improve rural road network. - This is a continuum each 
and every year and the council determine priorities based on funding and asset 
management. 

 
➢ 3.1.3.1 Continue implementation of Airport Master Plan. -  Continues with the 

expansion of the Airport Apron and Taxiway. 
 

➢ 3.2.2.3 Seek funding for Great Beyond Visitor Centre Stage 2. Funding of 
$1,300,000 has been received from the State Government with the Council to 
match these funds in the 2020/2021 budget. 

 
➢ 3.2.2 Well maintained service provision buildings – The Cemetery has had 

funding allocated and works have commenced, and this has emanated from the 
Friends of The Laverton Cemetery. Works undertaken include fencing, Gazebo, 
seating, and vegetation plantings. 
 

The Old Coach House has commenced restoration and improvements to house 
the CRC function of the Council. 
 
The Old Court House was renovated and is now utilised by a church and is 
readily available for other uses.  
 

➢ 3.1.1.3 Continue the sealing and upgrade program of Outback Way in 
accordance with funding availability. – The Outback Way has secured long term 
funding for the sealing of the Road.  
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                    SHIRE OF LAVERTON
                    NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
                    FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial report comprises general purpose financial Accounting policies which have been adopted in the 

statements which have been prepared in accordance with preparation of this financial report have been consistently 

Australian Accounting Standards (as they apply to local applied unless stated otherwise.  Except for cash flow and 

governments and not-for-profit entities) and Interpretations rate setting information, the report has been prepared on 

of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, and the Local the accrual basis and is based on historical costs, modified, 

Government Act 1995  and accompanying regulations. where  applicable, by the measurement at fair value of 

selected non-current assets, financial assets and liabilities.

AMENDMENTS TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT (FINANCIAL 

MANAGEMENT) REGULATIONS 1996 NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOR APPLICATION IN

The Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations FUTURE YEARS

1996  take precedence over Australian Accounting Standards. On 1 July 2020 the following new accounting standards are to

Prior to 1 July 2019, Financial Management Regulation 16 be adopted:

arbitrarily prohibited a local government from recognising as    - AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantors

assets Crown land that is a public thoroughfare, i.e. land    - AASB 2018-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting 

under roads, and land not owned by but under the control or      Standards - Materiality

management of the local government, unless it is a golf course, 

showground, racecourse or recreational facility of State or AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantors  is 

regional significance.  Consequently, some assets pertaining not expected to impact the financial report.

to vested land, including land under roads acquired on or 

after 1 July 2008, were not recognised in previous financial Specific impacts of AASB 2018-7 Amendments to Australian 

reports of the Shire. This was not in accordance with the Accounting Standards - Materiality, have not been identified.

requirements of AASB 1051 Land Under Roads paragraph 15 

and AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment  paragraph 7. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of a financial report in conformity with 

From 1 July 2019, the Shire has applied AASB 16 Leases Australian Accounting Standards requires management to 

which requires leases to be included by lessees in the make judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the 

statement of financial position. Also, the Local Government application of policies and reported amounts of assets and 

(Financial Management) Regulations 1996  have been amended liabilities, income and expenses.

to specify that vested land is a right-of-use asset to be 

measured at cost.  All right-of-use assets (other than vested The estimates and associated assumptions are based on 

improvements) under zero cost concessionary leases are historical experience and various other factors that are 

measured at zero cost (i.e. not included in the statement of believed to be reasonable under the circumstances; the 

financial position) rather than at fair value. The exception is results of which form the basis of making the judgements 

vested improvements on concessionary land leases such as about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not 

roads, buildings or other infrastructure which continue to be readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ 

reported at fair value, as opposed to the vested land which is from these estimates.

measured at zero cost. The measurement of vested 

improvements at fair value is a departure from AASB 16 THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT REPORTING ENTITY

which would have required the Shire to measure any All funds through which the Shire controls resources to carry 

vested improvements at zero cost. on its functions have been included in the financial statements

forming part of this financial report.

The Shire has accounted for the removal of the vested land

 values associated with vested land previously recognised by In the process of reporting on the local government as a single 

removing the land value and associated revaluation reserve as unit, all transactions and balances between those funds (for 

 at 1 July 2019. The comparative year amounts have been example, loans and transfers between funds) have been 

retained as AASB 16 does not require comparatives to be eliminated.

 restated in the year of transition.

Therefore the departure from AASB 1051 and AASB 16 in

respect of the comparatives for the year ended 30 June 2019

remains.

 | 10
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                    SHIRE OF LAVERTON
                    NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
                    FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

9. FIXED ASSETS

(d) Depreciation 2020 2020 2019

Actual Budget Actual

$ $ $

Buildings - non-specialised 203,522 425,000 368,274

Furniture and equipment 32,806 32,000 31,858

Plant and equipment 670,488 320,000 458,342

Infrastructure - roads 1,557,544 1,300,995 1,394,448

Other infrastructure 426,205 501,500 259,943

2,890,565 2,579,495 2,512,865

Revision of useful lives of plant and equipment

A management review of useful lives of plant and equipment was undertaken, and useful lives amended where necessary.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Depreciation Depreciation on revaluation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including buildings When an item of property, plant and equipment is 

but excluding freehold land, are depreciated revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of 

on a straight-line basis over the individual asset’s useful life the revaluation is treated in one of the following ways:

from the time the asset is held ready for use. Leasehold (a) The gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner 

improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the that is consistent with the revaluation of the carrying 

unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful life of amount of the asset. For example, the gross carrying 

the improvements. amount may be restated by reference to observable 

market data or it may be restated proportionately to the 

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and change in the carrying amount. The accumulated 

adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. depreciation at the date of the revaluation is adjusted 

to equal the difference between the gross carrying 

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its amount and the carrying amount of the asset after 

recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater taking into account accumulated impairment losses; or

than its estimated recoverable amount. (b) Eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the 

asset and the net amount restated to the revalued 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by amount of the asset.

comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These Amortisation

gains and losses are included in the statement of All intangible assets with a finite useful life, are amortised

comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. on a straight-line basis over the individual asset’s useful life

Depreciation rates from the time the asset is held for use.

Typical estimated useful lives for the different asset classes 

for the current and prior years are included in the table below: The residual value of intangible assets is considered to be

zero and the useful life and amortisation method are 

Asset Class Useful life reviewed at the end of each financial year.

Buildings 40 years

Furniture and equipment 10 years Amortisation is included within Depreciation on non-current 

Plant and equipment 3 to 10 years assets in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and in

Roads and streets 40 - 80 years the note above.

formation not depreciated

Airport 20 years

Sewerage piping 100 years

Parks and gardens equipment 35 years

Information bay 35 years

Town centre facilities 35 years

Tools 10 years

Right of use (buildings) Based on the remaining lease term
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ATTACHMENT 

ARC240621.4.3.A Shire of Laverton Audit Planning Memorandum 30 June 2021 

 

COMMENT 

Information item to be discussed by RSM  

RESOLUTION                                   COUNCIL DECISION/PROCEDURAL MOTION 

 MOVED: Cr R Prentice SECONDED: Cr R Ryles 

That Shire of Laverton Audit Planning Memorandum 30 June 2021, be 
received. 

 

CARRIED 5/0 

 
4:14PM RSM Australia Pty Ltd left the meeting.  



Page 20 Shire of Laverton 
Confirmed Minutes Audit and Risk Committee Meeting – 24 June 2021 
 

 

  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Audit Planning Memorandum 

30 June 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ASSURANCE & ADVISORY SERVICES 

SHIRE OF LAVERTON 

ATTACHMENT ARC240621.4.3.A
 Page 1 of 23



 

Shire of Laverton 
Audit Planning Memorandum 
30 June 2021  

CONTENTS 

 PURPOSE OF THE AUDIT PLANNING MEMORANDUM ................................................................................... 1 

 KEY ENGAGEMENT INFORMATION ................................................................................................................ 1 

 BACKGROUND AND GENERAL INFORMATION ............................................................................................... 1 

 KEY DELIVERABLES ........................................................................................................................................ 2 

 MILESTONE MEETINGS .................................................................................................................................. 3 

 TERMS OF ENGAGEMENT .............................................................................................................................. 4 

 AUDITOR GENERAL ....................................................................................................................................... 5 

 STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP ....................................................................................................................... 6 

 CURRENT YEAR DEVELOPMENTS ................................................................................................................... 7 

 AUDIT APPROACH TO THE KEY AUDIT AREAS ................................................................................................ 8 

 SIGNIFICANT RISK AREAS ............................................................................................................................. 10 

 OTHER CRITICAL DISCLOSURES IN THE FINANCIAL REPORT .......................................................................... 12 

 CONTROLS .................................................................................................................................................... 13 

 FRAUD RISK .................................................................................................................................................. 15 

 OTHER AUDIT MATTERS ............................................................................................................................... 15 

 INVOLVEMENT OF INFORMATION SYSTEMS AUDIT SPECIALIST ................................................................... 16 

 TIMETABLE ................................................................................................................................................... 17 

 APPENDIX A: ADDITIONAL INFORMATION CONTACTS ................................................................................. 20 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT ARC240621.4.3.A
 Page 2 of 23



 

Shire of Laverton  Page | 1  
Audit Planning Memorandum 
30 June 2021  

 

 PURPOSE OF THE AUDIT PLANNING MEMORANDUM 

The primary purpose of this Audit Planning Memorandum (APM) is to brief the Shire of Laverton (Shire) on 
the proposed approach by RSM Australia (RSM), on behalf of the Office of the Auditor General (OAG), to 
audit the financial report of the Shire for the year ending 30 June 2021. The APM forms the basis for 
discussion at the audit entrance meeting scheduled for 24 June 2021 and is a key tool for discharging our 
responsibilities in relation to communicating with those charged with governance. 

 KEY ENGAGEMENT INFORMATION 

 Key Shire stakeholders and personnel 

Ratepayers  Shire of Laverton 

Minister for Local Government The Hon. John Newton Carey MLA 

Shire President Cr Patrick Hill 

Deputy Shire President Cr Shaneane Weldon 

Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Peter Naylor 

Deputy CEO Phil Marshall 

Special Projects Officer Darren Friend 

 Key OAG personnel 

Auditor General Caroline Spencer 

Director, Financial Audit(1) Efthalia Samaras 

 Key RSM personnel 

Audit Director(1) David Wall 

Audit Manager  Pranjal Bhate  

National Technical Director Ralph Martin 

(1) Refer to Appendix A for contact details 

 BACKGROUND AND GENERAL INFORMATION 

 Background 

The Shire is approximately 183,198 square kilometres in size; consisting mainly of desert and pastoral 
country. As per the 2016 census, the Shire has a population of 1,153 people.  

The Shire is represented by seven Councillors. The Shire President is elected from among the Councillors. 

 Executive’s 

The Shire’s Executive team(1) at the date of this APM are: 

• Peter Naylor, CEO 

• Phil Marshall, Deputy CEO 

(1) As per the Shire’s website 
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 Governance 

The Shire is governed by Council, which appoints the CEO to advise and provide information to the Council 
in relation to the Shire’s functions and ensures the resources of the Shire are effectively and efficiently 
managed. 

 Regulation 

In terms of financial reporting, the Shire is subject to the Local Government Act 1995 (Act) and the Local 
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 (Financial Management Regulations). 

 KEY DELIVERABLES 

 Financial report audit and opinions 

The annual financial report will be general purpose financial statements for the financial year ending 30 June 
2021. The Auditor General is required by the Act to provide an opinion on the financial report and other legal 
and regulatory requirements in accordance with the Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996 (Audit 
Regulations). The objective of the Auditor General’s audit is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the Shire’s financial report, as a whole, is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and 
to issue an auditor’s report.  

The Auditor General’s report will be sent to Council, the CEO and the Minister for Local Government in 
accordance with the Act. The Shire is required to publish the auditor’s report with the annual financial report 
on its website. If the Auditor General has reported other significant matters, then the Shire is required to 
report the action it has taken about the matters to the Minister. 

The Auditor General will also communicate with the Shire President and the CEO regarding, among other 
matters, any significant findings regarding deficiencies in internal control that may be identified during the 
audit.  

 Management letters 

Significant findings, emerging issues and their recommended resolutions that arise during the audit will be 
progressively discussed and communicated by RSM and the OAG to the Shire. Any weaknesses in controls, 
which may be identified during the current year audit, will be highlighted in the management letter to Council 
and the CEO following the conclusion of the interim and final audits. The draft management letters will be 
reviewed by the OAG before being provided to the Shire for comment. 

Prior year management letter points will be followed up as part of the current year audit procedures to 
determine if any control weaknesses, highlighted during prior year audits, have been properly resolved. 

Findings Rating 

1. Assessment of new accounting standards AASB 15 and AASB 1058 Significant 

2. Mt Weld Road upgrade project Significant 

3. Purchase orders dated post invoice dates Significant 

4. Purchasing policy - obtaining quotations Significant 

5. Review of property values input into SynergySoft Moderate 

6. Review of open purchase orders Moderate 

7. Cash float controls/cash handling processes Minor 
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 Matters of significance 

In accordance with section 24(1) of the Auditor General Act 2006, the Auditor General is required to report 
on matters arising out of the performance of the Auditor General’s functions that are, in the opinion of the 
Auditor General, of such significance as to require reporting. 

 

 MILESTONE MEETINGS 

 Pre-planning meeting 

The pre-planning meeting will be with the Shire’s Administration, OAG (if required) and RSM. The meeting 
will discuss current developments at the Shire and any changes in governance or systems. The meeting will 
form the basis for the preparation of the APM. 

 Entrance meeting 

The entrance meeting will be held with the Audit (Finance and Risk) Committee, the Shire’s Administration, 
OAG and RSM. The meeting will mainly cover the presentation and discussion of the APM. If it is not 
practicable for the Audit (Finance and Risk) Committee to meet for an audit entrance meeting, we suggest 
at least one Elected Member (the Chair of the Audit (Finance and Risk) Committee) attends the entrance 
meeting.  

 Interim audit findings meeting 

The interim audit findings meeting with the Shire’s Administration, OAG (if required) and RSM will mainly 
cover the presentation and discussion of the significant control matters as reported in the interim audit 
management letter, if any. 

 Final audit findings meeting 

Significant accounting issues and audit findings, if any, noted during the final audit will be discussed with the 
Shire’s Administration, OAG (if required) and RSM. If there are significant, unresolved matters, then a 
meeting will also be held with the Audit (Finance and Risk) Committee. 

 Final audit exit meeting 

The exit meeting with the Audit (Finance and Risk) Committee, the Shire’s Administration, OAG and RSM 
will mainly cover the presentation and discussion of the audit closing report, which will outline any significant 
audit related matters concerning the financial report, management letters and improvement suggestions for 
future audits. 

 Council and Audit Committee meetings 

Meetings with Council and the Audit (Finance and Risk) Committee are by invitation and provides insight into 
matters that may have an impact on our audit approach. Generally, OAG and RSM will attend meetings as 
required.  
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 TERMS OF ENGAGEMENT 

 Arrangements 

Audits are not an absolute guarantee of the accuracy or reliability of the Shire’s information and may not 
identify all matters of significance. This is because the work undertaken to form an opinion is permeated by 
judgement and most audit evidence is persuasive rather than conclusive. In addition, there are inherent 
limitations in any audit, including the use of testing, the effectiveness of internal control structures and the 
possibility of collusion. 

Primary responsibility for the detection, investigation and prevention of irregularities rests with the Shire’s 
Administration. Consequently, it is the Shire’s Administration who remain responsible for keeping proper 
accounts and maintaining adequate systems of internal control, preparing and presenting the financial report, 
complying with the Act and the Financial Management Regulations. 

Under the Auditor General Act 2006, audit staff have unrestricted access to information held by the Shire, 
irrespective of any restrictions on disclosures imposed, such as secrecy provisions. 

Confidentiality of audit files and working papers is required under the Auditor General Act 2006. The OAG is 
an ‘exempt agency’ under the Freedom of Information Act 1992. 
 
The signed contract between the Auditor General and RSM contains strict confidentiality clauses. 

 Management representation letter 

The audit plan assumes that the Shire President and the CEO will be able to sign a management 
representation letter. The OAG and RSM will make available to the Shire a draft management representation 
letter during the course of the audit. The letter would be signed at the same time as the annual financial 
report is signed. 

RSM and the OAG will rely on the Shire President and CEO signing the management representation letter 
as evidence to confirm they have: 

• Fulfilled their responsibilities for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the Act and, to the extent that they are not inconsistent with the Act, Australian 
Accounting Standards; 

• Established and maintained an adequate internal control structure and adequate financial records; 

• Provided the auditors with access to all information of which they are aware, that is relevant to the 
preparation of the financial statements and the operation of controls, such as records, documentation 
and other matters; 

• Recorded all transactions in the accounting and other records and are reflected in the financial 
statements; 

• Advised the auditors of all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws 
and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements; and 

• Provided the auditors with the results of their assessment of the risk of fraud, any instances of fraud (not 
just material fraud) and any known data and security breaches. 
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 AUDITOR GENERAL 

 Audit of local government 

The Local Government Amendment (Auditing) Act 2017 makes legislative changes to the Act to provide for 
the auditing of local governments by the Auditor General. The Act allows the Auditor General to contract out 
some or all of the financial audits, but all audits will be the responsibility of the Auditor General. It also allows 
for performance audits, which will examine the economy, efficiency and effectiveness of any aspect of local 
government operations. The Act also places an obligation on local governments to publish their annual report, 
including their annual financial report and auditor’s report, on their website. 

The Auditor General has been given the mandate to: 

• Audit the annual financial report of WA local governments, related entities and subsidiaries; 

• Conduct performance audits of local governments; 

• Perform supplementary audits requested by the Minister; and 

Report to Parliament on the results of financial and performance audits. 

This change brings Western Australia in line with most other Australian jurisdictions and New Zealand. 

 Auditor General audits and reports 

During the current financial period, the OAG has issued a number of reports, which may be relevant for the 
Shire to consider: 

• Waste Management – Service Delivery (issued 20 August 2020). The report noted the waste planning 
at a sample of six local governments is inadequate and inconsistent and there is a need to do more to 
manage waste in line with current community and State expectations.  

• Annual Report 2019-2020 (issued 24 September 2020). The report acknowledged the challenges faced 
by local government due to COVID-19. The report also noted that local government financial audits 
continue to take more time than comparably sized State government audits. 

• Grant Administration (issued 28 January 2021). The audit found that a sample of eight State entities 
need to improve their grant administration practices.  

• Application Controls Audits 2021 (issued 9 March 2021). The audit found that a sample of four State 
entities could improve their controls around user access, vulnerability management and situational 
awareness to address cyber risks. 

• Regulation and Support of the Local Government Sector (issued 30 April 2021). The audit found the 
Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries use of its limited resources is not 
underpinned by a good understanding of risk and clear objectives for the local government sector. 
Moreover, its performance in regulating and supporting the sector does not currently reflect the 
expectations of local government entities and their communities. 

• Local Government General Computer Controls (issued 12 May 2021). The audit found that a large 
selection of 50 local government entities needed to improve their general computer controls. The audit 
found weaknesses in controls for information security, business continuity, change management, 
physical security and IT operations. These weaknesses in controls could significantly compromise the 
confidentiality, integrity and availability of information systems. The OAG recommended that the local 
government entities should act promptly to address them. The OAG also reported a need to improve how 
local government entities identify and treat information risks. 

Further details of the current and forward audit program can be found on the OAG website: 

https://audit.wa.gov.au/ 

Also, the OAG website has a library of better practice guidance that the OAG has developed to help the 
Western Australian public sector perform efficiently and effectively. 
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 STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP 

 RSM’s relationship with the Auditor General and the Shire 

RSM has been contracted by the Auditor General to perform the audit of the financial report of the Shire and 
report on whether the annual financial report of the Shire: 

• Is based on proper accounts and records; and 

• Fairly represents, in all material respects, the results of the operations of the Shire for the financial year 
and its financial position at the end of that period in accordance with the Act and, to the extent that they 
are not inconsistent with the Act, Australian Accounting Standards. 

RSM is also required by the Auditor General to report: 

• Any material matters indicating non-compliance with Part 6 of the Act, the Financial Management 
Regulations or applicable financial controls of any other written law; 

• Any significant adverse trends in the financial position of the Shire; 

• Whether all required information and explanations were obtained; 

• Whether all audit procedures were satisfactorily completed; and 

• Whether the asset consumption ratio and asset renewal funding ratio included in the annual financial 
report are supported by verifiable information and reasonable assumptions. 

RSM is also required to report any matter which may affect the Auditor General’s responsibilities under 
sections 24 and 28 of the Auditor General Act 2006, section 7.12 AD of the Act and the Audit Regulations. 

 Term of the audit contract 

RSM has been appointed by the OAG for a term of three years commencing with the financial year ending 
30 June 2021.  

RSM’s services will be conducted under the overall direction of the Auditor General, who will retain 
responsibility for forming an audit opinion and issuing an audit report to the Shire. The contract requires RSM 
to use its audit approach and methodology.  

 Grant acquittals 

Grants received by the Shire may need to be acquitted in accordance with the terms and conditions of the 
relevant Funding Agreement. Acquitting a grant means accurately reporting on the funded activities and the 
expenditure of the funding. Grant acquittal reports, providing activity and financial information, are generally 
required at certain stages during the funded project and / or on completion of the funded project. If satisfactory 
grant acquittal reports are not provided at the times and in the manner detailed in the Funding Agreement, 
there is a risk that any further payments due to the Shire will be withheld and the Shire may be ineligible to 
apply for further grants. 

In most circumstances the grant acquittal reports are required to be audited. Generally, the Funding 
Agreement will require the Shire to engage an auditor to form an opinion that the receipts and payments are 
true and fair and that the Shire has complied with the terms and conditions of the Funding Agreement. 

If RSM is invited by the Shire to complete the audit of grant acquittal reports, then RSM must first obtain 
approval from the OAG before the audit begins. 

 Independence 

The Auditor General is an independent officer of the Western Australian Parliament, appointed under 
legislation to examine, on behalf of Parliament and Western Australian taxpayers, the management of 
resources within the public sector. The Auditor General is not subject to control or direction by either 
Parliament or the government. In conducting the audit, the Auditor General, staff and delegates will comply 
with all applicable independence requirements of the Australian accounting profession. 

RSM Orb, our optimal risk-based audit methodology requires that we conduct an annual re-evaluation of our 
independence prior to the commencement of each assignment. We have fully satisfied ourselves that we do 
not have any actual or perceived conflict of interest. 
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We are fully compliant with our Ethics and Independence Policies, which are verified and tested each year 
by our Partner Responsible for Ethics and Independence. Each year we are required to submit certain 
information to our Partner Responsible for Ethics and Independence, which is analysed and subjected to a 
series of stringent tests. This system has been extensively reviewed by the Australian Securities and 
Investments Commission and found to be in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, the Corporations 
Act 2001 and better practice. 

 CURRENT YEAR DEVELOPMENTS 

We had discussions with the Shire’s Administration and reviewed the 30 June 2020 financial statements and 
the 30 June 2020 audit file to identify any significant matters that may affect the audit planning and process. 
As at the date of this audit plan, we have identified the following development, which is expected to impact 
the financial statements audit for the year ending 30 June 2021: 

 COVID-19 

We will work with the Shire’s Administration to minimise the risk for your staff and Councillors, our staff, and 
to your operations, while completing audits in the best timeframe possible under the circumstances. This will 
likely involve more audit work being performed remotely rather than at your premises, and / or delaying audit 
work if unforeseen circumstances arise. 

 AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangement: Grantors 

AASB 1059 was adopted by the Shire, effective 1 July 2020, and sets out how public sector entities that 
grant concessions to private sector operators for the delivery of specified public services should treat those 
grants.  The grantor must recognise a service concession asset, measured at current replacement 
cost, when it controls or regulates what services the operator must provide with the asset, to whom it must 
provide them, and at what price, and when the grantor retains an interest in the asset at the end of the 
arrangement.  It must also recognise a related service concession liability, which will usually be treated as 
unearned revenue, and recognised as income over the life of the concession. The Shire will review and 
provide its assessment on the impact of adoption of AASB 1059. 

RSM audit response: 

RSM will obtain and review the Shire’s assessment of the impact of AASB 1059 and ensure it has properly 
accounted for during the current financial year. 

 ASA 540 Auditing Accounting Estimates  

The recently revised ASA 540 Auditing Accounting Estimates, Including Fair Value Accounting Estimates, 
and Related Disclosures has implications for the Shire and those responsible for financial statement 
preparation and the determination of accounting estimates. The key implications of the new Standard means 
that the Shire will require more time to prepare sufficient appropriate documentation of the Shire’s estimates 
and recognise that increased efforts may be required by auditors to audit the estimates. There is an 
expectation that the Shire will assist and review the level of detail and provide audit evidence available to 
support estimates within the financial statements along with an increase in audit effort. This will be achieved 
through two-way dialogue between auditors, management and audit committees about the critical aspects of 
accounting estimates. 

RSM audit response: 

RSM will obtain further understanding over the control environment, risk assessment procedures, information 
systems, control activities and monitoring procedures during our audit procedures. Testing over how 
management made the accounting estimates will be performed by performing a retrospective review of past 
estimates and judgements, obtaining audit evidence up to the date of the auditor’s report and by developing 
an auditor’s point estimate or range (Three Testing Approach). Based on the information gathered, we will 
determine if there are indicators of possible management bias and if there are, the implications for the audit. 

 Casual employees leave entitlement including long service leave under Long Service Leave 
Act 1958  

The Shire should ensure it is in compliance with the Long Service Leave Act 1958. The Shire employing 
casual workers will need to consider whether a long service leave provision is required.  
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RSM audit response 

RSM will review management’s assessment on casual employees leave entitlement. 

 

 AUDIT APPROACH TO THE KEY AUDIT AREAS 

 Risk assessment 

Key audit areas are those areas that, in RSM’s professional judgment, present the most significant risk in our 
audit of the financial report.  

As part of our audit approach, we have conducted an initial financial report risk assessment to determine 
whether any of the risks identified are, in our judgment, significant. A significant risk is an identified and 
assessed risk of material misstatement in the financial report that, in our judgment, is a key audit area and 
requires special audit consideration. 

Our assessment of key audit areas is based upon: 

• Discussion with the Shire’s Administration and the OAG; 

• The complexity of transactions within each area; 

• The degree of subjectivity in the measurement of financial information related to the risk, especially those 
measurements involving a wide range of uncertainty; 

• The degree of susceptibility to fraud risk; and 

• Consideration of any relevant matters that may be discussed during the audit planning stage. 

 

 Materiality 

For the purpose of this APM, we referred to the audited 30 June 2020 financial report of the Shire and used 
our professional judgment to determine a planning materiality amount. In line with OAG policy, we have not 
disclosed the amount of planning materiality. 

The scope of our audit is influenced by the application of materiality. Based on our professional judgment, 
we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality, including the overall materiality for the financial 
statements. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the nature, timing and 
extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial report line items and disclosures and to evaluate 
the effect of identified misstatements, both individually and in aggregate, on the financial report and on our 
opinion. 

In assessing the risk profile of the Shire, and in consideration of the users of the financial report, we have 
adopted materiality guidelines in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. 

For the purpose of determining materiality, total assets are considered a key metric of interest to the users 
of the financial statements, Therefore, they will be used as the main benchmark for the calculation of overall 
materiality.  

However, expenses are of significant interest to users of local government financial statements, as they seek 
to ensure funds are being spent appropriately.  Therefore, we will consider a specific lower materiality for 
those account balances where there are circumstances (including qualitative factors) for which 
misstatements of lesser amounts than overall materiality could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users of the financial statements. For example, specific lower materiality will be 
calculated using total expenses as the benchmark for items such as revenue, other income, expenses, payroll 
and liability balances. 

  

Materiality Audit Scope Key audit areas 
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 RSM approach to auditing significant risk 

RSM’s approach to auditing a class of transactions, account balance or disclosure is to initially assess 
whether there is a reasonable possibility that it could contain a material misstatement. Our risk assessment 
is based on both quantitative and qualitative criteria to determine whether they are significant. 

Our audit strategy follows a hierarchy, which starts with testing of controls, then moves to substantive 
analytical review procedures and then finally, testing of details. The following diagram shows an example 
where a high level of reliance on controls, along with a moderate level of reliance on substantive analytics is 
likely to result in testing of details that can safely rely on smaller sample sizes. 

Audit Reliance 

High 

 

  

Medium 

 

 

Low  

  

Controls 
Substantive 

analytical review 
Test of details 

Audit technique 

Based on previous audit experience at the Shire and review of the Shire’s financial information, we have 
assessed that we can rely on internal controls, we have concluded that we can rely on internal controls, 
which effectively means we can apply a moderate level of substantive analytics and limited testing of details. 
This controls based approach is both efficient and effective. 

 Professional scepticism 

We approach all our audits with a degree of professional scepticism as required by Australian Auditing 
Standards. In addition, professional scepticism is a key component of delivering an effective public sector 
audit. ASA 200 Overall Objectives of the Independent Auditor and the Conduct of an Audit in Accordance 
with Australian Auditing Standards defines professional scepticism as ‘an attitude that includes a questioning 
mind, being alert to conditions which may indicate possible misstatement due to error or fraud, and a critical 
assessment of audit evidence’. 

Professional scepticism is particularly relevant in areas that involve assumptions by the Shire’s 
Administration and / or estimates. It is also critical when evaluating audit evidence to reduce the risk of the 
auditor: 

• Overlooking unusual circumstances; and 

• Over generalising when drawing conclusions from observations using inappropriate assumptions in 
determining the nature, timing and extent of evidence gathering procedures and evaluating the results 
thereof. 
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 SIGNIFICANT RISK AREAS 

Using the 30 June 2020 financial report as a guide and referring to the RSM calculated materiality amount 
and risk assessment, RSM has identified the following potential significant risk areas for the current financial 
year: 

Significant risk area 30 June 2020  

$’000 

30 June 2019  

$’000 

Revenue and receivables cycle   

Rates 5,303 4,684 

Trade receivables (current and non-current) 926 1,388 

Purchases and payment cycle   

Material and contracts 4,826 6,494 

Property, Plant and Equipment (additions) 518 4,452 

Infrastructure (additions) 9,235 12,280 

Fixed assets cycle   

Property, Plant and Equipment 13,866 14,938 

Infrastructure 139,888 133,339 

 Revenue and receivables cycle  

Reasons why RSM considers this area a significant risk  

Implementation of AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-
Profit Entities are effective from prior year. The impact of AASB 15 and AASB1058 was correctly adopted by 
the Shire during prior year. The Shire will review all new revenue streams in accordance with AASB 15 and 
AASB 1058. 

Revenue is measured by considering multiple elements, for example rates transactions are calculated by the 
application of a rate in the dollar to the Gross Rental Value (GRV) or Unimproved Value (UV), which is in 
turn determined by dividing the required rate collection amount by the total valuations on the roll. GRV’s and 
UV’s vary between the various property types, such as mining and pastoral. The GRV / UV is supplied by 
Landgate. Furthermore, rates revenue represents a significant portion of the Shire’s annual operating income 
and is an important revenue stream in terms of the Shire’s cash flows. 

Fees and charges is a material amount and is measured by the application of an annual charge to rateable 
land supplied with specified services and other services provided by the Shire. For example, classic domestic 
bin services and swimming pool inspection fees. There are also further complexities with the application of 
the eligible pensioners rebate scheme. In addition, further complexity and risk is associated with the 
requirement for the Shire to comply with Part 6, Division 6 ‘Rates and service charges’ of the Act. 

Based on the above complexities and the high risk of management override by the Shire’s Administration, 
revenue recognition for rates is considered significant risk. 

RSM audit response 

RSM will obtain and review the Shire’s assessment of the impact of AASB 15 and AASB 1058 and ensure 
adequate disclosure in the notes to the financial statements. 

RSM audit procedures will also include, among other things, assessment of the Shire’s effectiveness of key 
internal controls operating within the revenue cycle, including application controls. RSM will perform a 
walkthrough of the key management controls over the revenue cycle and test key management controls. 
RSM will review, on a sample basis, the reconciliations and calculation of rates and compare these against 
historical results. In order to assess the completeness of recording revenue in the correct accounting period, 
RSM will perform revenue cut-off testing and review credit notes.  
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To determine the existence of the receivable balance and the recoverability thereof as at 30 June 2021 and 
the impact on the Shire’s assessment of its expected credit loss calculation, RSM will review receivables 
balances on a sample basis and perform subsequent receipt testing. Furthermore, we will perform analytical 
procedures on rates through detailed comparison with prior year balances and budget forecasts. RSM will 
also determine if the disclosures in the notes to the financial report related to the Shire’s revenue recognition 
policy are appropriate. 

 Purchases and payment cycle 

Reasons why RSM considers this area a significant risk  

All procurement made by the Shire is subject to the requirements of the Act and Part 4 of the Local 
Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996 (Functions and General Regulations), which is 
the basis for the Shire’s purchasing policy (Policy). The Act and the Functions and General Regulations are 
there to guide the Shire in delivering best practice in the purchasing of goods, services and works that align 
with the principles of transparency, probity and good governance. Errors, uncertainty and unrealistic timelines 
can undermine market confidence, discredit a purchasing process and devalue the outcome of the 
procurement. Due to the strict and complex requirements of the Policy, including value for money, regulatory 
compliance, record management, transparency and professionalism, there is potential for insufficient 
knowledge of the Policy’s requirements or failure to comply with the Policy. 

RSM audit response 

RSM will review the Shire’s purchasing policies and assess the effectiveness of internal controls operating 
within the payment cycle. In addition, we will perform a walkthrough of the key controls over the purchase 
and payment cycle, including tendering, and perform tests of control on key controls over the purchase and 
payment cycle. Furthermore, we will perform analytical procedures on procurement through detailed 
comparison with prior year balances and budget forecasts. Our testing will include an evaluation of whether 
the Shire’s purchasing activities have complied with the Act and the Functions and General Regulations. 

 Fixed assets cycle 

Reasons why RSM considers this area a significant risk 

Property, Plant and Equipment and Infrastructure respectively constituted 9% and 89% of the Shire’s total 
assets as at 30 June 2020.  Under regulation 17A of the Financial Management Regulations, the Shire’s 
Plant and Equipment assets are to be measured under the cost model whereas Property and Infrastructure 
is to be carried at fair value less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.  Under 
regulation 17(4) of the Financial Management Regulations, the Shire is required to revalue an asset: 

• Whenever the local government believes the fair value of the asset is likely to be materially different from 
its carrying amount; and 

• In any event, within a period of not more than 5 years after the day on which the asset was last valued 
or revalued. We understand that the Shire will not be revaluing fixed assets for the year ending 30 June 
2021. 

Furthermore, in accordance with paragraph 9 of AASB 136 Impairment of Assets, the Shire is required to 
assess at reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. 

RSM audit response 

We will carry out internal control testing over the Shire’s processes for determining inputs into fair value 
measurements and perform detailed substantive testing on a sample basis of the related fair value 
measurements. We will focus our testing on the key assumptions made by the valuer in determining the fair 
value, testing the mathematical accuracy of the calculation models, performing sensitivity analyses around 
the key assumption used in the models and reviewing the reference material used by the valuer to determine 
the Level 2 and 3 inputs. 

We will review the Shire’s assessment that the fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment and Infrastructure 
assets is not likely to be materially different from their carrying amounts and the Shire’s consideration of any 
potential impairment indicators. 
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 OTHER CRITICAL DISCLOSURES IN THE FINANCIAL REPORT 

RSM will also audit the following critical disclosures in the financial report: 

 Related party disclosures 

The Shire is subject to the requirements of AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures. The Standard requires 
disclosures for senior officers’ compensation and certain transactions with related parties. A review will be 
conducted to ensure proper accounting and disclosure of related party transactions and executive 
remuneration. 

Further, section 7.12AL of the Act applies section 17 of the Auditor General Act 2006 to a local government, 
which requires the Shire to advise the Auditor General in writing of details of all related entities that are in 
existence. 

RSM audit response: 

We will review the disclosures and supporting material to ensure compliance with AASB 124. We will also 
assess the Shire’s internal controls around the identification and proper disclosure of related party 
transactions and executive remuneration. 

 Financial ratios 

Under regulation 50 of the Financial Management Regulations, the annual report is to include financial ratios. 
Financial ratios are designed to enable users of annual financial reports to interpret more clearly the Shire’s 
performance and financial results, as well as provide a comparison of trends over several years.  

These indicators provide a measure of the financial sustainability of local governments and complement the 
national criteria endorsed by the Local Government and Planning Ministers’. They provide for a 
comprehensive tool for monitoring the financial sustainability of local governments. 

RSM audit response: 

We will obtain and audit the ratios to assess compliance with regulation 50 of the Financial Management 
Regulations. 

 Capital and other commitments for expenditure 

The Shire must disclose in the financial statements its capital and other commitments relating to future asset 
construction and replacements.   

RSM audit response: 

We will check the underlying calculations and review the evidence to support the amounts disclosed. 

 Reserve accounts 

The Shire has established several reserve accounts under section 6.11 of the Act for the purpose of setting 
aside money for a specific purpose to be used in a future period. Cash reserves are required to be held in 
separate bank accounts. Although reserve accounts are aggregated with municipal funds in the financial 
statements, they are segregated in the notes to the financial statements as restricted funds. 

RSM audit response: 

RSM will review the reserve account reconciliations and test that the transfers to and from these accounts 
are in accordance with the specific purpose of the reserve. 

 Major land transactions 

Regulation 46 of the Financial Management Regulations prescribes the disclosure requirement for major 
land transactions. The information to be disclosed by the Shire is set out in regulation 47 and includes: 

• Details of the total income and expenditure for the transaction; and 

• Details of the amount or value of any surplus of money or assets. 

RSM audit response: 

RSM will review the financial records of the Shire to assess whether all major land transactions have been 
identified and disclosed in accordance with regulation 47.  
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 CONTROLS 

 Internal control 

Internal controls are systems, policies and procedures that help an entity reliably and cost effectively meet 
its objectives. Sound internal controls enable the delivery of reliable, accurate and timely external and internal 
reporting.  The Shire is responsible for developing and maintaining its internal control framework to enable: 

• Preparation of accurate financial records and other information; 

• Timely and reliable external and internal reporting; 

• Appropriate safeguarding of assets; and 

• Prevention or detection and correction of errors and other irregularities. 

The annual financial audit enables RSM to form an opinion on the Shire’s financial report. An integral part of 
this, and a requirement of Australian Auditing Standard ASA 315 Identifying and Assessing the Risks of 
Material Misstatement through Understanding the Entity and its Environment, is to assess the adequacy of 

an organisation’s internal control framework and governance processes related to its financial reporting. 
While this understanding has a significant impact on our audit strategy, our audit of the Shire’s financial report 

is not designed to assess, nor do we provide an opinion on, the effectiveness of internal controls.   

We focus on the internal controls relating to financial reporting and assess whether the Shire has managed 
the risk that the financial report will not be complete and accurate. Poor controls diminish Administration’s 
ability to achieve the organisation’s objectives and comply with relevant legislation. They also increase the 
risk of fraud. 

During our planning procedures we will gain an understanding of the following components of internal control: 

• Control environment; 

• Risk assessment procedures; 

• Information systems; 

• Control activities; and 

• Monitoring procedures. 

Our preliminary assessment of the internal control framework may indicate that the internal controls are likely 
to be effective in preventing or detecting and correcting material misstatements in the financial report. In 
these circumstances, we would plan to place reliance on the key internal controls relating to the material 
components in the financial report to support our audit opinion. 

 Significant changes to internal controls 

The Shire has represented that there are no significant changes to internal controls for the 2021 financial 
period to date. 
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 Rotation approach 

In accordance with our rotational controls testing approach, we will conduct a risk assessment for each major 
transaction cycle during our initial engagement year. The risk assessment is benchmarked against our 
knowledge of each transaction cycle within the local government sector. Using the risk assessment, we 
design a control testing rotation plan that will bring certain transaction cycles into audit scope each year. 
Those cycles not in scope will be subject to our normal walkthrough procedures and confirmation of our 
understanding of the key controls.  

During the current audit, we will use a rotation approach to test the design and effectiveness of key controls 
used in a sample of major transaction cycles linked to significant risk areas. Some transaction cycles will be 
rotated out and not subject to design and effectiveness testing. Instead, we will update our understanding of 
the controls and confirm our understanding using walk-through procedures. 

  

Phase 1
Identification of major 

transaction cycles

Phase 2
Risk assessment

In scope transaction 
cycles

Confirmation of 
understanding

Detailed testing

Design and 
effectiveness 

evaluation

Rotated transaction 
cycles

Walk-through testing

Confirmation of 
understanding

Phase 3
Controls testing 

rotation plan
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 FRAUD RISK 

Under Australian Auditing Standard ASA 240 The Auditor’s Responsibility Relating to Fraud in an Audit of a 
Financial Report, when planning and performing audit procedures and evaluating the results, the auditor 
must consider the risk of material misstatement in the financial report because of fraud and error. 

Although ASA240 sets out the principles and procedures we must follow, the primary responsibility for the 
prevention and detection of fraud and error rests with the Shire. The Shire is responsible for maintaining 
accounting records and controls designed to prevent and detect fraud and error, and for the accounting 
policies and estimates inherent in the financial report.  

Our audit procedures on fraud risk include the following: 

• Forward a copy of the fraud control checklist for self-assessment to the Shire’s Administration prior to 
our final audit visit. The checklist allows us to make inquiries of Administration, to obtain its understanding 
of the risk of fraud within the Shire and to determine whether Administration have any knowledge of fraud 
that has been perpetrated on or within the entity. We will review the fraud control self-assessment by the 
Shire; 

• Review the Shire’s fraud control procedures in place to reduce the risk of fraud occurring within the entity, 
including the Shire’s code of conduct; 

• Understand the Shire’s fraud control environment; 

• Understand the business rationale for significant or unusual transactions; 

• Review current accounting estimates for biases; 

• Review the appropriateness of year end accounting adjustments; 

• Make enquiries of those charged with governance and others within the Shire; 

• Incorporate an element of unpredictability in the selection of the nature, timing and extent of audit 
procedures to be performed as individuals within the entity who are familiar with the audit procedures 
normally performed on engagements may be more able to conceal fraudulent financial reporting; and 

• Understand the Shire’s journal entry process and testing journal entries posted including the 
authorisation of journals. 

 OTHER AUDIT MATTERS 

 Internal audit 

The Shire has advised that no internal audit has been planned for the year ending 30 June 2021.  
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 Audit preparation checklists 

To assist the Shire to gather and collate the necessary audit information and documentation, we will issue in 
advance of each audit visit an electronic Interim Audit Preparation Checklist and a Final Audit Preparation 
Checklist utilising CaseWare Xtend.  

The benefits of CaseWare Xtend include:  

• Securely request, file and store sensitive data 
within the audit engagement. 

• Collaborate and communicate in real time, allowing 
for a more adaptable and transparent workflow.  

• Manage requests in one centralised location that is 
readily accessible. 

• Track the status of audit requests. 

CaseWare Xtend will facilitate the delivery of an efficient audit and help to minimise interruptions to the 
Town’s staff.  

We have found this facility to be very useful and clients have appreciated the savings in time and reduced 
disturbance by auditors during the audit fieldwork.  

 Important changes in governance, management or internal control environments 

The Shire has advised that, other than those matters mentioned in the APM, there are no other major 
changes to its governance, Administration or internal control environment that may significantly impact the 
30 June 2021 financial report. 

 Cumulative knowledge of accounting and computer systems and any expected changes 

The Shire has represented that they are not aware of any significant changes to the accounting or computer 
systems. 

 INVOLVEMENT OF INFORMATION SYSTEMS AUDIT SPECIALIST 

The Shire’s financial information system is not complex and there is no requirement for RSM to engage an 
Information System Audit specialist. RSM will conduct a high-level review of IT General Controls. 

RSM complies with Auditing Standard ASA 315 Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement 
through Understanding the Entity and Its Environment.  Our approach to information systems audit is to 
obtain an understanding of the information system, including the related business processes, relevant to 
financial reporting, including (amongst others) how the information system captures events and conditions, 
other than transactions, that are significant to the financial statements. 
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 TIMETABLE 

Phase Task Indicative 
timeframe(1) 

Action 

Planning Pre-planning meeting to review and update the 
overall audit approach and plan 

3 June 2021 RSM 

OAG 

 Shire  

Issue draft APM to the Shire for commentary  4 June 2021 RSM 

Entrance meeting with Audit (Finance and Risk) 
Committee, the Shire’s Administration, OAG and RSM 
for the presentation and discussion of final APM 

24 June 2021 RSM 

OAG 

Shire 

Interim audit 
fieldwork 

Issuing of Interim Audit Preparation Checklist to the 
Shire 

12 May 2021 RSM 

Based on risk assessment, performance of cyclical 
controls testing, walkthrough of major business cycles 
and review of key reconciliation procedures for the 
9 months ended 31 March 2021 

14 – 18 June 
2021 

RSM 

Assessment of status of Management Letter points 
raised for the prior year 

 Review of audit file by the OAG Early-July 2021 OAG 

Interim audit 
reporting 

Interim audit findings meeting with the Shire’s 
Administration, the OAG and RSM to discuss any 
significant control matters surrounding the major 
transaction cycles and content of the management 
letter, if any 

6 July 2021 

RSM 

OAG 

Shire 

Issue the draft Interim Audit Management Letter (if 
any) for the year ending 30 June 2021 to the OAG for 
consideration and comment 

8 July 2021 RSM 

OAG 

Issue of the draft Interim Audit Management Letter (if 
any) to the Shire for consideration and comment. 

13 July 2021 RSM 

Shire 

Return of draft Interim Audit Management Letter (if 
any) to RSM with commentary 

15 July 2021 Shire  

Issue the Interim Audit Management Letter (if any) to 
the OAG 

19 July 2021 RSM 

Draft 
financial 
report 

The Shire submits proforma financial report to RSM 
for review and comment. This will be in the form of the 
statutory model with the previous year’s actuals 
displayed. 

31 August 2021 Shire 
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Phase Task Indicative 
timeframe(1) 

Action 

Final audit 
fieldwork 

Issuing of Final Audit Preparation Checklist 1 September 2021 RSM 

Provision of trial balance as at 30 June 2021 to RSM No later than 30 
September 2021 

Shire 

Shire to submit draft financial report as per the Act 
deadline. 

No later than 30 
September 2021 

Shire 

Performance of substantive tests for revenue and 
expenditure cycles for the 3 months ending 30 June 
2021 

11 – 15 October 
2021 

RSM 

Performance of substantive tests for balance sheet 
accounts as at year end 

 Review of audit file by the OAG  OAG 

Final audit 
reporting 

Final audit findings meeting with the Shire’s 
Administration, the OAG and RSM to discuss any 
significant control matters surrounding the major 
transaction cycles and content of the management 
letter, if any.  

8 November 2021 

RSM 

OAG 

Shire 

Issue the draft Final Audit Management Letter (if any) 
for the year ending 30 June 2021 to the OAG for 
consideration and comment 

10 November 
2021 

RSM 

OAG 

Issue the draft Final Audit Management Letter (if any) 
for the year ending 30 June 2021 to the Shire for 
consideration and comment 

12 November 
2021 

RSM 

Shire 

Return draft Final Audit Management Letter (if any) for 
the year ending 30 June 2021 to RSM with 
commentary 

16 November 
2021 

Shire 

 

Issue the Final Audit Management Letter (if any) to the 
OAG 

18 November 
2021 

RSM 

Issue draft Management Representation Letter and 
draft Financial Report to the Shire for consideration 
and comment 

23 November 
2021 

RSM 

Issue final Management Representation Letter, 
Financial Report and Audit Closing Report at least 1 
week before exit meeting. 

26 November 
2021 

RSM 

Final audit exit meeting with the Audit (Finance and 
Risk) Committee, the Shire’s Administration, OAG 
and RSM. 

December 2021 RSM 

OAG 

Shire 

Independent Contract Auditor’s Report issued 9 December 2021 RSM 
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Phase Task Indicative 
timeframe(1) 

Action 

OAG to sign and issue the Audit Report Within 5 working 
days of receiving 

the signed 
financial 

statements and 
reporting from 

RSM. 

OAG 

Shire’s Ordinary Council Meeting for the adoption of 
the 30 June 2021 Financial Report 

December 2021 Shire 

(1) The above dates are tentative at this stage and are subject to amendment as a result of staff 
availability from the Shire and OAG due to the COVID-19 crisis. 
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 APPENDIX A: ADDITIONAL INFORMATION CONTACTS 

 

David Wall Efthalia Samaras 

RSM Australia Office of the Auditor General 

Level 32, Exchange Tower 7th Floor, Albert Facey House 

2 The Esplanade 469 Wellington Street 

Perth Western Australia 6000 Perth Western Australia 6000 

Tel: +61 8 9261 9687 Tel: +61 8 6557 7536 
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